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President’s Report 

Point Leo SLSC is an open, welcoming and 

inclusive club. We truly have something 

special. The energy, enthusiasm and 

commitment of club members to Lifesaving 

and Point Leo SLSC is extraordinary. There is 

so much passion within the Club, and it is this 

passion that inspired me to take on the role of 

President. This season brought much 

uncertainty and new challenges. But as a club, 

we faced these challenges, strengthening our 

resolve, our culture and our values. We 

continued our collective commitment to 

lifesaving and to Point Leo SLSC. We 

continued to connect with each other and our 

community, albeit often virtually and when in 

person, always at a safe distance with COVID-

19 protocols. It was an exhausting season for 

so many of you and I thank you all for the time 

and energy devoted to Point Leo SLSC at a 

very uncertain time. It is a credit to our club 

members that we continued to communicate, 

collaborate and support each other in this very 

strange and difficult time. 

Simon Merrigan 

After four years of service to our club as 

President, Simon Merrigan decided to hand 

the reins over at the end of 2020. On behalf of 

all members, thank you Simon for your 

contribution. During Simon’s tenure, he set a 

tone of collaboration that has encouraged and 

enabled many great projects. Over Simon’s 

time, Point Leo SLSC has formed and 

strengthened a partnership with the Balnarring 

and District Branch of the Bendigo Bank, 

working together on projects that benefit the 

community. With regards to our core function 

of protecting our beach-going community, 

there has also been a consistent improvement 

in our patrol scores on audit and increased 

patrol sizes with full awards across the whole 

season. On a personal level, Simon is part of 

the dedicated team on the clubhouse and 

facilities planning project and he has liaised 

with local, State and Federal government 

resulting in what may be our biggest single 

fundraising amount for the building and facility 

upgrades. Simon will continue contributing to 

our club on the committee as Vice President 

Funding and Sponsorship and as a member of 

the Future Project Sub-committee. 

COVID-19 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, we had to 

overcome many challenges and inevitably this 

season looked vastly different from those in 

the past. We had a dedicated Pandemic Team 

working with LSV to deal with COVID-19 

related issues and developing strategies to 

ensure that we provided programs and 

operations in a CovidSafe manner. Our Club’s 

guiding principle was to keep members and 

the public as safe as possible in the most 

practical way. CovidSafe plans were prepared 

and implemented for all sections of the Club. A 

huge thanks to Tamara Brawn who led the 

Pandemic Team and devoted an enormous 

amount of time and energy developing the 

COVID-19 Management Policy along LSV 

guidelines for our Club. Also, thanks to all on 

the Pandemic Team who assisted in the 

development of plans and to Jason Romari 

and Tarena Murray, our COVID Coordinators. 

The Season 

The season kicked off with lifesaving training 

and this was a challenge in the height of 

COVID-19 restrictions. Brittany Morgenthaler 

as Chief Instructor did an amazing job leading 

an incredible team of volunteers to deliver 

SRC, Bronze, other courses and Skills 

Maintenance sessions in very restrictive 

conditions. Thanks go to Britt, Andrew Gibson 

and Chuck Warner for ensuring that we 

delivered our IRB course to our eager 

participants. 

Patrols, once again, ran incredibly smoothly 

over the season so congratulations and thanks 

to our Club Captain, Adam Lipszyc, and Vice 

Club Captain, Andy Nott. Many thanks also to 

all the Patrol Captains and their teams in 

keeping our beach safe and presenting such a 

welcoming and settled environment.  

Throughout the season we had some days 

with record numbers on the beach resulting in 
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some hectic days which kept our patrols very 

busy with the added challenge of adhering to 

COVID-19 plans. Patrol members of all ages 

performed with maturity and professionalism 

across the summer, and it was particularly 

pleasing to see good attendance at patrols. 

Keeping each other and the public safe at 

Point Leo beach is our main purpose, and we 

fulfilled our duties here. 

 

Special mention to Bridget Barnes for 

organising another successful Pink Patrol to 

celebrate female involvement in Lifesaving. 

There were some fabulous speakers and loads 

of pink stuff!  

 

Well done also to Adam Lipszyc for organising 

the first Pride Patrol in Victoria demonstrating 

our club's commitment to openness, respect 

and inclusion for people’s diversity. Adam 

demonstrated so much leadership, passion 

and innovation in this space. 

 

Fortunately, after a few false starts due to 

COVID-19, the Disabled Surfing event took 

place at Point Leo on Saturday 13 March 

2021. The Disabled Surfing Association 

Mornington Peninsula (DSAMP) thank us for 

our ongoing support of this worthwhile event 

that brings so much joy to so many. The 

collaboration between the DSAMP, the 

Foreshore Committee and Point Leo SLSC 

demonstrates the strength of our community. 

 

Juniors 

After such a difficult year, it was heart-warming 

to see our Nippers finally being able to get on 

the beach and participate in a very COVID-19 

tailored Junior Surf Lifesaving Program 

(JSLP). Dianna McKellar, Tarena Murray, 

Sarah-Jo Mason and the massive support 

team of parents delivered a fantastic program 

in tough conditions. We appreciate the 

arduous work and many hours put in by the 

JSLP team as well as those who assisted in 

the very onerous setup and 

pack up, particularly Andrew Ford, Andrew 

Welsh, Nick Clarke and Chuck Warner. 

 

Special mention also to Adam Kyriacou who 

did an exemplary job as Water Safety 

Coordinator in both the JSLP and Junior 

Sunday Sessions. Mornington Prime Cuts 

came to the rescue in supplying delicious beef 

sausages to provide sustenance to our 

incredible water safety team. Our trusty 

Bobbas Max, John and Alf manned the BBQ 

superbly once again. 

 

The Junior Sunday sessions followed the 

intensive JSLP. This program focused on 

participation, inclusion and skill development. 

Daniel Kogler graciously accepted the role to 

lead these Sunday sessions. This program 

was a success so special thanks to Daniel and 

to all involved. 

 

The Junior Surf Sports Program is an 

extension of the JSLP and Sunday sessions; it 

offers Nippers an additional level of training 

and continues to strengthen and grow 

with inclusivity. Nick Clarke as Junior Coach 

led this program and we thank him for his 

dedication, passion and expertise in giving 

participating Juniors an opportunity to further 

their skills, build team spirit, respect and 

camaraderie. 

 

Overall, the Junior Programs only exist 

because of the amazing contribution of parents 

and club member volunteers. You guys are 

incredible in your commitment to your roles. 

 

Youth 

The new Youth Program, aptly named the 

“Lion’s Den”, was an innovative program 

developed by Sarah-Jo Mason to encourage 

engagement and subsequent retention within 

the Cadet members (14/15 year olds). 
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The Lion’s Den was hugely successful and 

culminated in a well-attended Swim Camp in 

January. Thanks to Sam Hunt, Madison Clark 

and Sarah-Jo Mason for running such a 

fabulous program and harnessing the energy 

and enthusiasm of this age group. Our young 

people were remarkable in being involved and 

assisting in water safety and patrols. We also 

thank and greatly appreciate the generosity of 

BlueScope Westernport in support of this 

Youth program within our club. 

 

Surf Sports 

The Point Leo Gold event was a fabulous day 

bringing together club members from all areas. 

This event encapsulates the spirit of Point Leo 

SLSC, and we look forward to building on this 

event in the future. Massive thanks again to 

Jon Ford, Nick Clarke and the Surf Sports 

Team for organising this spectacular event. It 

was so awe-inspiring to watch the many 

Nippers, Seniors and Masters giving it their all. 

And doing it all together. Unity. 

 

Surf Sports had some amazing results this 

season, which can be read in detail later in the 

Annual Report. Congratulations to the Junior 

U12 and U13 Nippers who represented Point 

Leo at the LSV Junior State Championships, 

they came Second overall. This is an 

outstanding result. I had the privilege of 

attending the LSV Open State Championships 

held in Lorne and there were same fantastic 

individual and team results. Special 

congratulations go to the Open Female Taplin 

Relay Team who are the first team to win this 

event for Point Leo SLSC. 

And finally, the Masters team had a 

resounding win at the LSV Masters State 

Championships. It was an amazing effort and, 

from what I hear, a lot of fun and frivolity as 

well as serious competitive drive. Well done to 

Jon Ford for his dedication and commitment to 

recruitment and management and thank you 

Iris Cassell as Team Manager for your hard 

work and commitment to this role. 

 

And finally, a huge shout out to Mark (Macca) 

McDermott and the boat section! It is fabulous 

to see the re-emergence of surf boat rowing 

and with Macca’s dedication, look forward to 

the further growth of this section and 

development of this very exciting sport within 

our club. Congratulations to the Open Men’s 

Crew and Master’s crew, both of whom 

achieved fantastic results on both a state and 

national level including a Bronze for the Open 

Men’s crew at the state carnival. Well done, 

Boaties! 

 

It is so inspiring to see so much dedication and 

teamwork resulting in our remarkable success 

across Masters, Seniors and Juniors. Thanks 

to all the coaches, officials and support crew 

whose contribution was crucial in attaining this 

level of success. And of course, 

congratulations to all the competitors. It 

reflects all the demanding work, commitment 

and training to achieve such impressive 

results. 

 

Social 

Unfortunately, due to COVID-19 restrictions, 

we were unable to hold many events, and our 

beloved Muso Night had to be cancelled. After 

the intensive JSLP finished Dude’s Bar 

reopened, much to the joy of the Bobbas and 

friends. It was indeed a cherished moment for 

this legendary crew! Many thanks to Jason 

Romari for managing the bar. 

 

There was an event held on 26 January 

2021 to welcome the Honorary Life Members 

and announce the Gary Tierney Foundation 

(GTF) Fellowship recipients. Due to COVID-19 

restrictions, this event was limited in numbers, 

but was well attended by Life Members, GTF 

board members and past Fellowship 

recipients, new GTF recipients and their 

families and some committee representation. 
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Election as an Honorary Life Member is one of 

the highest awards any Club can bestow on a 

member. Life Membership recognises the 

distinguished and exceptional contribution to a 

club and in this instance to our incredibly 

unique Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club. 

This year our Club appointed three new Life 

Members: Louise Tierney, Dr John Silver and 

Marc Aliotti. Congratulations! Each of these 

new Life Members is very worthy of this 

honour, with years of service and behaviour 

that reflects our values. 

 

Three amazing young adults were awarded 

the GTF Fellowship; Isabella Austin, 

Ella Laussen, and Caitlin Robinson. Well done 

and well deserved all of you. We look forward 

to seeing you further develop in your roles and 

continue with your valuable contributions to 

our club.  

 

This event was significant in having the legacy 

of the Club with the presence of the Life 

Members juxtaposed with the young GTF 

recipients who are embarking on their surf 

lifesaving journeys as young adults. 

The reminiscing and tales of the past provided 

a richness and depth to our Club history and 

was appreciated by all. 

 

We also held an event to celebrate the huge 

Masters win at States. This was a fabulous 

evening with stories of incredible feats and fun. 

Thanks to Andrew Gibson for organising the 

event and Stacey Lethean and team for 

assisting with the catering. 

 

Swim Classic 

This year, due to COVID-19 complexities, we 

held a virtual Swim Classic. Thanks to Sarah-

Jo Mason and Kim Williams for managing the 

event and Haydn Tierney for organising 

another awesome Swim Classic T-Shirt from 

Golden Breed. We also greatly appreciate the 

Balnarring and District Community Bank’s 

continued support of the 2.5km Swim 

Challenge. We are delighted to say that the 

Virtual Swim was well attended with 222 

participants and an amazing $6,000 (including 

donations and sponsorship) raised for the 

Club. 

 

LifeChanger 

Point Leo SLSC again delivered this innovative 

program to support the positive development 

of our youth. The LifeChanger Foundation’s 

vision is to ‘awaken the unlimited power that 

lives inside all youth’ and its focus is on 

nurturing and building healthy personal 

identity. LifeChanger is a proactive program 

looking to provide youth with the tools required 

to navigate life’s inevitable challenges. The 

program’s goals include identifying and 

developing inspiring mentors within our Club, 

creating self-sustaining, safe and resilient 

communities. Thank you to our inspiring and 

empathetic mentors Josh Doherty, Charlie 

Cassell-Ashton, Lachie Robinson, Nick Ford, 

Lily McMeeken and Nat Clarke for being 

involved. We greatly appreciate the 

Mornington Peninsula Shire for supporting this 

program. 

 

Future Project 

Plans for the next phase of the clubhouse 

redevelopment, which covers the external 

storage area and enhanced outdoor spaces, 

continue to develop and I thank Luke 

Treadwell and Simon Merrigan for their skills 

and expertise in leading the Future Project 

Sub-Committee. Consultation with the 

Foreshore Committee will now commence. We 

value our collaborative relationship here in 

ensuring that we maintain the integrity of our 

beach and surrounds. We have been fortunate 

to receive a Federal grant from the 

Department of Health for $300,000 towards 

the Future Project development. Well done 

Mick Treadwell for procuring this sizeable 

grant. We also appreciate the many generous 

donations towards this project from club 

members and will embark on further fund 

raising over the 2021-2022 summer season so 

we can achieve our project goals. 

 

Awards 

Congratulations to all those nominated for 

2019-2020 Lifesaving Victoria Awards of 

Excellence. Super congratulations to Matthew 

Callaghan, Tamara Brawn and Rhys Cole for 

receiving the Award of Excellence in their 

nominated category. This was an incredible 

personal achievement and fabulous for our 

club. Congratulations to Sarah-Jo Mason, 



Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. | ABN 83 471 063 765 | pointleoslsc.com.au  Page | 6  

Adam Lipszyc and Brittany Morgenthaler, our 

other finalists; to be nominated is well 

deserved recognition for your achievements in 

lifesaving. 

 

Congratulations to Rhys Cole who was 

nominated by Lifesaving Victoria for the SLSA 

Surf Lifesaver of the Year. This is an incredible 

honour and recognition for his achievements in 

lifesaving. 

 

Tamara Brawn was awarded the SLSA Official 

of the Year in recognition of her work at 

carnivals around Australia as well as her 

contribution to the development of officials and 

State and National Sports Committees. 

Congratulations Tamara on this outstanding 

and well-deserved achievement. 

 

Sponsors 

We acknowledge with gratitude all our 

sponsors including Vantage Fuels and Bowser 

Bean Café, BlueScope Westernport, Paton 

Real Estate, O’Connor Beef and Mornington 

Prime Cuts for support of our Club through the 

active season. 

 

Our relationship with the Balnarring and 

District Community Bank Branch of Bendigo 

Bank continues to strengthen. We have 

developed a strong partnership with the 

Community Bank and value our enduring 

relationship and look forward to further 

collaboration. 

 

We are sincerely grateful for the 

contribution of all Point Leo SLSC 

sponsors and encourage club members to 

support these businesses in 

acknowledgement of their support. 

Finally 

This season, we implemented a new 

committee structure with clearly defined roles. 

This structure has ensured a clear delineation 

of tasks to ensure effective operations of all 

facets of the Club. The Committee, this year, 

consisted of a fabulous bunch of people - 

driven, committed and a lot of fun and 

comprised of a diverse blend of experience, 

youth and fresh faces. Thank you to our 

wonderful committee for all your hard work and 

dedication behind the scenes. I thoroughly 

enjoy collaborating with this fabulous and 

passionate bunch of people who are 

committed to the best interests of Point Leo 

SLSC. 

 

A personal thanks to the Executive Committee 

comprising Tamara Brawn, John Gallagher, 

Adam Lipszyc and Kim Williams for the 

additional time dedicated to club matters and 

for supporting me in this role and providing 

much guidance and advice. Kim Williams 

devotes so much time and energy to club 

administration and I thank her for her 

dedication to the Club. 

 

There are many important activities to be 

performed and managed across the various 

portfolios of the Point Leo SLSC to ensure 

efficient and successful operations. There are 

positions on the Committee and there is an 

accompanying extensive list of club activity 

roles. I urge you to get involved next season; 

there are plenty of opportunities across all 

areas to find something that will interest and 

inspire you. Please contact me or any of the 

Committee members if you feel you would like 

to contribute or be involved in any way. 

Involvement strengthens your connection with 

other club members, is fulfilling and can be 

fun! 

Julia O’Shaughnessy 

President 
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Committee 

 

Position Name 

President 
Julia 
O’Shaughnessy 

Secretary John Gallagher 

Treasurer/Registrar Kim Williams 

Captain Adam Lipszyc 

Vice-Captain Andrew Nott 

IRB Captain 
Edward (Chuck) 
Warner 

Team Manager (Senior) Iris Cassell 

JSLP (Nipper) Coordinator Dianna McKellar 

Gear & Equipment 
Steward 

Andrew Welsh  

JSLP (Nipper) 
Representative 

Tarena Murray 

Team Manager (Junior) Kylie Clark 

Head Coach Jon Ford 

Athlete’s Representative Lachlan Robinson 

Committee Darius Alekna 

Committee  Luke Treadwell 

Position Name 

Chief Instructor 
Brittany 
Morgenthaler 

Senior Vice President Tamara Brawn 

Vice President Juniors Sarah-Jo Mason  

Vice President Lifesaving 
Services 

Bridget Barnes 

Vice President Grants Michael Treadwell  

Vice President Youth 
Development 

Sam Hunt 

Vice President 
Communications 

Romy Lipszyc 

Vice President ‘Bobbas’ 
Liaison 

Andrew Gibson 

Committee Andrew Barnes 

Committee Jason Romari 

Vice President 
Membership Development 

Dianne Summers 
(resigned October 
2020) 

Vice President Fundraising 
& Sponsorship 

Simon Merrigan 

House Administrator Andrew Gibson 

 

U13 March Past State Titles Bronze Medalists 
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Club Captain’s Report 

Many of us will be happy to turn the page on the 

2020-2021 season just gone and look to the 

future. Yet we have much to reflect upon and 

even more to celebrate over the past few chaotic 

months. Patrols, believe it or not, continued 

throughout the COVID-19 pandemic. This took 

significant coordination, flexibility and effort from 

all involved. I want to thank all our patrolling 

members for their efforts. A special mention to 

the Patrol Captains who took the greatest burden 

upon their shoulders. They dealt with changes 

including restricted numbers, restricted 

clubhouse access, consistent weekend patrols 

and lots of PPE. A special mention also to the 

Pandemic Team that coordinated club activity 

throughout the season and to the broader 

committee for their efforts in supporting patrols 

throughout. 

 

Brittany Morgenthaler has achieved what many 

were unable to do this season, in that she 

spearheaded multiple camps over the summer 

months. The workflow and re-arrangements 

experienced by patrols was child’s-play 

compared with the strict and constantly changing 

modifications imposed upon the training section. 

Maximum capacities and limited clubhouse 

access meant that the training teams had to 

adapt like never before. I am astounded that we 

have had so many candidates achieve awards. 

On a similar vein, a big shout out to Andrew 

Gibson and Chuck Warner for their efforts in 

ensuring the IRB course could continue 

throughout the season. These awards are the 

bedrock upon which patrols rely – without them, 

the patrol structure simply falls apart. A hearty 

congratulations to the entire training team for 

their wonderful efforts. 

 

Congratulations to our incredible sports sections. 

While many of us, myself included, let 

restrictions be an excuse to not exercise, the 

competition teams trained as best they could, 

again dealing with significant imposed 

limitations. The dedication of course paid off with 

resounding results right across the spectrum: 

from our Boaties to our Masters, there was a 

level of success that the Club hasn’t ever 

experienced before – literally, there were awards 

won and feats accomplished that are not 

recorded in the Club’s history! We congratulate 

all our competitors for their efforts and spirit, we 

commend our coaches, trainers and managers 

for their exemplary work in a very tough season 

and we recognise all those whose contributions 

make competition possible, including our IRB 

crews, our officials, our drivers of trailers and so 

on. 

 

The Club Committee was, as always, diligently 

working right across the entire year. While 

significant efforts were redirected due to COVID-

19, resulting in the formation of the Pandemic 

Team, there has been significant progress with 

respect to future planning and grants received. 

The Future Project Sub-committee has been 

tirelessly working in the background to garner 

further financial support, and local government 

support, to proceed with the later stages of our 

build. The Grants Department (ie Mick 

Treadwell) has been very busy, applying – with 

great success – for a number of grants that have 

allowed the Club to remain in the black despite 

very challenging economic times. 

 

I want to make special note of two Patrol projects 

of great importance. The Pink Patrol was 

delivered successfully, after several tricky 

reschedules. The Pink Patrol serves to recognise 

the incredible efforts of our female members and 

aims to inspire many more female members to 

participate in all the different aspects of 

lifesaving the Club has to offer. We are blessed 

to have so many unique and wonderful female 

role models, many of whom have supported me 

personally with their advice and mentorship.  

 

Additionally, the Club hosted its first ever Pride 

Patrol. As far as I can tell, it may well be the first 

Pride Patrol in LSV history! It aims to recognise 

and celebrate the diversity of our members, 

while acknowledging the hurdles that have been 

and remain in situ for the LGBTQIA+ community. 

I am so proud of those who helped coordinate 

and deliver these events – they serve to publicly 
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broadcast our inclusive nature to the public – so 

thank you to all involved and watch this space! 

 

There never is enough room to celebrate the 

efforts of all our club members in the Annual 

Report, however I do want to congratulate 

Dianna McKellar on executing a very subscribed 

Nipper program. The moving parts of a Nipper 

program are overwhelming and coming into the 

role during a Pandemic was undoubtably 

daunting. With great support and 

encouragement, you and your team have pulled 

off something special. 

 

To the remainder of the Point Leo SLSC family, 

thank you for your individual efforts over the 

2020-2021 season. Whether it was car-pooling, 

whipper snipping, barbequing, coaching, flag 

holding, board-rinsing, bar-serving, bus-driving, 

every little effort adds up, and due to our not-for-

profit nature, it is literally vital. So thank you! 

 

It is with some sadness that Andy Nott and I will 

be stepping down as your Club Vice-Captain and 

Club Captain. I want to sincerely thank Andy for 

his efforts over the past few years in his, often 

thankless, role. Andy has been consistently first 

on deck during an emergency or rescue, and 

now coordinates rescue operations on the 

Mornington Peninsula through his role with LSV. 

We have been lucky to have had Andy shaping 

our patrols and serving the Club with a very 

hands-on approach. I have been lucky to have 

had a great friend as my Club Vice-Captain. 

 

I personally thank all the Committee members 

who have given me their full support and 

unwavering encouragement since I signed up for 

the role. My time as Club Captain has been 

really humbling and I’m immensely proud of what 

the Club does, considering we are entirely 

volunteer run. Immediate past President Simon 

Merrigan and immediate past Secretary Andrew 

Gibson have always given me sound advice, 

especially with sensitive matters, and current 

President Julia O'Shaughnessy and current 

Secretary John Gallagher have been equally 

supportive. Our tireless Treasurer Kim Williams 

has consistently picked up the slack where I 

have dropped it (or wherever the slack may lie) 

and I thank her for showing me how to do my 

job, time and time again. I very much look 

forward to mentoring the next generation of club 

leaders and I will continue to contribute to the 

Club as best I can going forward. 

 

Stay well. 

 

ADAM LIPSZYC 

Club Captain 

Bridget Barnes, Georgia Cassell-Ashton, Romy Lipszyc and Ella Swaney 
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Operations 
 

Vice Club Captain’s Report 

What a season it has been. We had a highly 

successful and uneventful season which is a 

big win in our books! It goes without saying 

that we can’t do it without the amazing 

patrolling members of our club! Thank you to 

all who attended patrols or any water safety 

sessions this season. 

 

I would like to thank all our Patrol Captains – 

Sam Warner, Romy Lipszyc, Ella Laussen, 

Rhys Cole, Nick Woods and Andrew Gibson, 

and all the Vice Patrol Captains – Jasper 

Romari, Liam Whitehouse, Georgia Cassell-

Ashton, Harry Atkins, Chuck Warner and 

Michelle Royal-Hebblewhite. This impressive 

group of members helped lead our patrollers 

during a challenging season and did it without 

hesitation, so thank you. There are a couple of 

new names in these positions this season, and 

I’d like to thank them all for choosing to step 

up into leadership. To all the patrollers this 

season, you all did an amazing job, and we 

are incredibly grateful for your efforts. Here at 

the Club, we are fortunate to have such a 

strong range of members and all the work that 

you do doesn’t go unnoticed. Although this 

season was a challenge with so many different 

restrictions and adjustments to our Standard 

Operating Procedures, we managed to adapt 

to the new normal and push through. With new 

guidelines that came through from LSV we 

were only in need of 4 members on patrol at 

the beginning of the season. This was slowly 

adjusted back to normal numbers by the end 

of the season. Again, I’d like to thank all 

patrolling members for supporting the club 

through this challenging season. 

 

Thank you again to all our incredible patrolling 

members who put in the hours to keep our 

beach safe. Patrolling is the reason we are 

here and to have the sheer numbers of 

members and the depth of knowledge of these 

members is a great achievement within itself. 

Andy Nott 

Vice Club Captain

 

First Aid Report 

2020-2021 season was understandably a 

quieter year for first aid, although we continued 

to provide regular minor and major first aids at 

patrols and for members of the community 

outside of formal patrol times. 

 

I look forward to continuing to help our 

members gain valuable first aid experience at 

our major events. These can be applied not 

only on patrol when there is less support 

around, but also in the community or at a 

workplace. 

 

If you hold a Level 2 first aid certificate and are 

keen for more experience please get in 

contact! If you are keen to upskill, I would 

encourage you to look out for first aid courses 

over the winter break - lockdowns permitting! 

Morgan Jones 

First Aid Officer
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IRB Report 

The IRB section over the last few years has had 

an injection of new equipment and with COVID-

19 playing its hand, we tightened our belts. Point 

Leo’s requirement for a large fleet is driven by 

the huge resources required for The Boxing Day 

Swim. This year our main function was to 

support Nippers and Patrols after COVID-19 

cancelled the swim. 

 

This report will be all about thanking the Drivers 

and Crew who supported those functions. 

 

Nippers requires two boats and Crews on the 

water for the duration of the sessions. Setup and 

pack up extend for at least an hour each side of 

those sessions- time span nobody considers. 

The lion’s share of the Nipper sessions was 

covered by Nat Clarke and Chris Oldham.  

They would each have spent at least 30 hours 

dedicated to the cause. Also, thanks to the 

Romari boys, the Edmonds brothers, Steve 

Northcote, Nick Woods, Nick Richardson, Bryce 

Appleton and Mick Treadwell for covering more 

than their fair share. 

 

Nippers is also a time for several new Crew and 

Drivers to get some time and practice with an 

experienced driver. Those new Crews and 

Drivers passed their awards late in April. Thanks 

to everyone that helped Nippers to run smoothly 

from an IRB perspective. 

 

IRB Drivers and Crew were required to support 

the water safety and setup team at Carnivals. 

They can be long cold shifts as everyone who 

goes to carnivals knows. Our Junior competition 

team rosters were carried by Nick Richardson, 

Nat Clarke and Maddie Clarke. Seniors was 

covered by Charlie Cassel-Ashton and Nathan 

Cester. We really appreciate your time and 

sacrifices. 

 

Sitting in an IRB can at times be very taxing on 

the body and we are always looking for a new 

influx of crews to spread the load. We were 

fortunate to have Andrew Gibson (Gibbo) step in 

as our only qualified IRB trainer and run the IRB 

course late in the season. We were plagued by 

COVID-19 and poor weather, but thankfully the 

dedicated Drivers and Crew stuck at it, and we 

now have a great new group to help. Thanks to 

Sam Warner, Andy Nott, James Paton, Ella 

Swaney, Ella Laussen, Britt Morgenthaler, Nick 

Woods, Mick Treadwell, Steve Northcote and 

Bryce Appleton for mentoring those on their L 

plates. Thankyou Gibbo for your endless hours 

of teaching and supportive approach.  

 

On 25 April 2021 Drivers and Crews sat their 

tests. Congratulations to the following: 

Drivers Crew 

Will Laussen Giselle Northcote 

Nat Clarke Corey Lionnet 

Cameron Austin Chloe Talbot 

Ky Morgenthaler James Morton 

Freddie Langdon Charlotte Lillywhite 

 

Lastly, thank you to Andrew Welsh and Andrew 

Gibson for your time and support in the gear 

shed and Jason Romari for the modifications to 

the cage. Apologies if I have missed anyone. It’s 

been a hard season and any help is and was 

appreciated. 

EDWARD ‘CHUCK’ WARNER

IRB Captain 
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Gear & Equipment 

COVID-19-safe compliance impacted all aspects 

of the 2020-2021 season and particularly the 

safe maintenance and provision of equipment for 

lifesaving activities. Every area of our operation 

had to be re-thought and modified accordingly. 

To keep the public and our members safe, PPE 

and suitable medical waste management 

practices had to be instituted for all patrols. 

 

Disinfection of equipment had to be maintained 

and strict protocols observed. Training and 

award activities that would normally take place 

indoors were conducted outdoors under tents 

and socially distanced. In some instances where 

equipment had to be shared (such as training 

manikins) additional equipment had to be 

purchased.  

 

The Nipper program had to be re-imagined so 

that sharing of equipment was minimised or 

eliminated and each Nipper group was safely 

isolated from each other. We had a wonderful 

crew of parent volunteers led by Andrew Ford 

who setup and packed up all the Nipper 

equipment for every session and made sure 

COVID-19 guidelines were observed. 

 

The Club spent money on new equipment where 

required, but also increased our efforts to secure 

grants to help defray costs. We secured a 

significant grant to completely cover the 

servicing and maintenance of our ATV, IRB 

motors and club trailers. We also recently (May 

2021) took delivery of a new Can-Am ATV 

(below) that was 50% funded through a specific 

grant program, and we are awaiting the imminent 

arrival of a new Kawasaki Mule ATV that is fully 

funded through a donation from BlueScope 

Westernport and a government grant. 

Other successful grants have allowed us to 

purchase tents, rescue boards, manikins, rescue 

tubes, lifejackets and a new oxygen kit. 

Congratulations and thanks to Mick Treadwell 

who is a one-man grant-seeking machine, for the 

endless hours of work required to apply for these 

grants. 

 

Finally, the ongoing maintenance and 

organisation of this equipment is a massive task. 

Particular thanks must go to Andrew Gibson (our 

VP Facilities), Nick Clark and Chuck Warner for 

their constant help in repairing and organising 

our equipment. Once again thanks to Travis 

Cargill for allowing us to store the Nipper trailer 

off-site. 

ANDREW WELSH 

Gear Steward 

Education 
 

Chief Instructor’s Report 

What a season it has been for the Club and 

the community. Due to COVID-19 impacting 

our training we had several courses running 

throughout the season. It was an enormous 

task to ensure every member’s awards were 

updated through Skills Maintenance. We 
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worked very hard to ensure these courses and 

Skills Maintenance would be able to run as 

well as be successful for all members and the 

community. 

 

The training started in late October 2020 and 

continued through to late April 2021. Over the 

season we held: 

• Five SRC courses (12 per course) 

• Three Bronze Medallion courses (12 per 

course) 

• Two First Aid courses 

• IRB Crew and Driver course 

• Adult Bronze course (run by Andrew 

Gibson and Jane Starr) 

 

As well as our new awards we conducted 29 

Skills Maintenance sessions throughout the 

season. 

 

Surf Rescue Certificate (SRC) Camp 

This season’s SRC camp was very different 

from the past. Due to COVID-19 we were 

unable to have participants sleepover. The 

participants were divided into five different 

groups that each completed the course over 

three days starting in late October and 

finishing in January. A massive thank you to all 

parents for their assistance, as well as all 

members who helped with the courses. 

 

Bronze Camp 

The 2020-2021 Bronze course was also very 

different from what we knew as Bronze camp, 

being split into three different groups. 

Participants had to go home each day and 

return the following morning, with groups being 

separated across 10 days. As the COVID-19 

restrictions had relaxed by January 2021 we 

had a Bronze Camp fun day where all groups 

were able to get together and socialise with 

lunch provided. On the fun day the participants 

also received their Bronze Camp jumpers. A 

massive thank you to all members, parents 

and participants for your assistance and 

patience with these courses. 

 

Congratulations to all members who 

completed a new award this season! It was a 

terrific effort during a challenging time. 

 

Congratulations to our three new Gold 

Medallion holders, Madison Clark, Will 

Laussen and Nathaniel Clarke. This lifesaving 

award acknowledges their advanced skills and 

knowledge to manage emergency situations in 

autonomous situations. 

A massive thank you to the Point Leo 

Pandemic Team for your assistance with 

running the courses safely. 

 

Thank you to these wonderful members who 

have helped with training courses and 

administration throughout the season: Kim 

Williams, Adam Lipszyc, Romy Lipszyc, Ella 

Laussen, Zali Cargill, Andrew Nott, Andrew 

Gibson, Jane Starr, Tamara Brawn, Julia 

O’Shaughnessy, Michelle Royal-Hebblewhite, 

Zach Richter, Bridget Barnes, Hamish Wynn-

Pope, Chuck Warner, Sam Warner, James 

Paton, Charlie Cassell-Ashton, Georgia 

Cassell-Ashton, Ky Morgenthaler, Nick Woods, 

Bella Warner, Rhys Cole, Ella Swaney, Ellie 

Doherty, Andrew Welsh and Bodhi Woods. 

 

 

Brittany Morgenthaler 

Chief Instructor

Our latest Gold Medallion Holders (L-R) 

Madison Clark, Will Laussen and Nathaniel Clarke 
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Surf Sports 

 

Team Manager’s Report  

After a year without events, Life Saving Sport 

was presented very differently this year. We 

were forever perched ready for the starter’s gun 

that sometimes just did not go off. Training and 

carnivals were held to ransom by COVID-19 

restrictions and beach quality issues. Many plans 

were made and discarded as clubs and affiliates 

worked to find how lifesaving sport could look 

over the 2020-2021 season. Our pool lifesaving 

events were cancelled as the season 

progressed. We are grateful for the work 

completed by our own Point Leo COVID-19 

Pandemic Team and coaches and the LSV and 

State Government bodies that worked tirelessly 

together to ensure that we were finally able to 

attend sporting events. 

 

Turning up to events was a new experience with 

QR coding, COVID Marshals, caps on entry 

numbers and restrictions on levels of spectators. 

This is now a real and present regulator within 

our sport. We attended events at Mordialloc 

(restricted to beach events at the last minute), 

Lorne, Ocean Grove, and Jan Juc (restricted to 

Water events at the last minute). Altona (beach 

carnival) was supported by youth athletes and 

was a double up for the Masters to complete this 

component of their championships. 

 

Despite these necessary adjustments we had 

some great experiences including making Point 

Leo history with our Masters team taking out the 

2021 Victorian Masters Championships title. A 

wise man said that ‘80% of success is just 

showing up’ and Point Leo Masters did just that! 

The Championship event was held over two 

separate days of separate disciplines. Including 

our boat team (Point Leo Platos below) we won 

32 Gold, 31 Silver and 25 Bronze medals with 

points gained from a majority of top 6 placings to 

take out the title with an outstanding 503 points.  

 

Congratulations to all of the members who took 

part in the preparation, the race days, the 

eleventh hour recruits, to create such an 

incredible result. Thanks again to the team of 

officials and frontline supporters that joined our 

village. Congratulations to Andrew Gibson, Jon 

Ford and team for creating powerful synergy and 

everyone who contributed to a sense of 

belonging in this group. There is now a strong 

foundation set for the future of Masters 

competition under the orange cap. 

 

Our Open State Championships was held at 

Lorne and this event was a wonderful weekend. 

We fielded a team of 40+ athletes ranging from 

Youth, Senior and Masters (Boats). Our Boats 

were cancelled due to severe surf conditions and 

were forced to reconvene at a later date to 

complete their events. We had some amazing 

highlights in the beach area with our Youth 

members taking out several Gold medals in the 

Beach Relays and Sprint events. Our Open 

competitors fared well with Gold in the 2k run, 

the Open Surf Race, U19 Single Ski and our 

Open Female Taplin Relay Team. Hannah 

Cester won the Under 15 Champion Lifesaver 

event to go on and represent Victoria in the 

same event at the National Titles. Our boaties 

‘The Pachyderms’ scored a Bronze medal and 

‘Platos’ (below) scored valuable club points at 

their rescheduled event. We finished in 10th 

place with 129 points.  

Masters Beach Team 
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We had a small but enthusiastic team attend the 

Australian Titles at the Sunshine Coast in 

Queensland There were approximately 6000 

people in attendance across the two weeks of 

the event. Hannah Cester represented Victoria in 

the Champion Lifesaver event and placed ninth. 

During the following days, The Platos surfboat 

crew and Jon Ford attended the Masters 

National Championships at Alexandra 

Headlands. Despite some hard racing and 

amazing starts the wave gods were not in our 

alley and the Platos were out of the running after 

3 races. Jon Ford, coming off the back of the 

State Masters win, was out pursuing a personal 

goal. Jon was successful in placing 5th overall in 

the 55-59 Ironman event for a great finish to the 

summer season for him. Truly an amazing effort. 

 

Our Open competitors had it tough from the 

outset with fierce competition racing alongside 

the elite of the elite of Iron men and women. 

Highlights included Isabella Austin making it 

through to the Quarter finals of the U19 Single 

Ski and U19 Board Race, Henry (Harry) Atkins 

and Myles Irwin making it through a round in 

Open Ski and Josh Doherty making it through a 

round of Open Board Race. 

 

Our Support Team of the Head Coach and his 

team of coaches, IRB crews, water safety and 

our incredible Officials are important members of 

the team who build the foundations for the team 

behind the scenes. 

 

My biggest and heartfelt thanks go to: 

• Coaches: Jon Ford and Nick Clarke and their 

support coaches. 

• Officials: Tracey Cester, Andrew Gibson, 

Wendy Smith, Wendy Handley, Georgia 

Cassell Ashton, Paul Doherty, Dianne 

Summers, Tamara Brawn 

• IRB Drivers and Crew: Nathan Cester, 

Chuck Warner, and Charlie Cassell-Ashton 

• Water Safety: Grace Handley, Elle Doherty, 

and Jasper Romari 

 

Thanks to Lachie Robinson, Lily McMeeken, 

Steve Laussen, Mark Callaghan and Sandra 

Williams for their successful co-ordination of the 

Youth athletes at States. Thank you to the 

parents and helpers who supported the athletes 

on the beach. 

 

Also thank you Julia O’Shaughnessy for your 

leadership, Kim Williams for administrative 

support that was pivotal this year. Thank you to 

the Point Leo Committee and the Gary Tierney 

Foundation for their ongoing support of the Surf 

Sports section. 

 

To the athletes who continue to work hard, to 

strive for excellence and persevere no matter 

what, we are looking to the Aussies 2022 in 

Scarborough WA during 2-10 April. Cannot wait. 

 

“Every job is a self-portrait of the person who did 

it. Autograph your work with Excellence” 

(Unknown) 

Iris Cassell 

Team Manager (Senior) 

 

Head Coach’s Report

The 2020-2021 season for the Club and Surf 

Sports was like no other. To be successful in 

Surf Sports, particularly at a national level, 

requires a strong and consistent training base, 

finely honed skills and race practice against the 

best in the country. Due to COVID-19 our Point 

Leo athletes missed almost 2 years of interstate 

competition and were not able to train from 

February – December 2020. In addition, several 

our athletes such as Matt Graves, Hannah Scott 

and Lachlan Robinson had season ending 

surgery. Despite these obstacles the Surf Sports 

squad regrouped quickly once restrictions lifted 

to train strongly from December 2020 to April 

2021, get some great results at the Victorian 

State Titles and put together a small but 

committed squad that attended the Aussies at 

the Sunshine Coast. Comradery was a big part 

of negotiating a tricky season. It was also very 

encouraging to see a large number of U14/15 

athletes train with Amber Skehan and Di 

Summers on board and attend the States. This 

augurs well for the future of the Senior squad. 

 

Special mention to the 50 odd Masters athletes 

who responded to the call to train over January 
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2021, three times a week. Many of these 

members took themselves outside their comfort 

zone in swim, board, ski and run with amazing 

improvement in skills and confidence. This 

culminated in 45 Masters competing at the water 

and beach events and us being overall points 

winners for the first time in the Club’s history! 

The lessons learnt from 2020-2021 are already 

being reflected upon resulting in planning for a 

bigger and better 2021-2022 season. The 

Masters are continuing to train on Sundays (9am 

swim) and Wednesdays (6.30am paddle) and for 

impromptu downwind paddles. The Masters and 

Seniors are planning several individual and team 

entries in the iconic Coolangatta Gold this 

October 2021. A major team management and 

coaching restructure will see unparalleled 

opportunity for our youth section to grow. 

Aussies is in Perth from 2-10 April 2022 so it’s 

worth thinking about getting on board! 

Finally, a huge thanks to Iris Cassell who has 

been the Team Manager for many, many years 

and has decided to hang up her clipboard at the 

end of this season. Iris’ contribution is too vast to 

convey in a short report, but she leaves with a 

legacy of a mature and cohesive open Surf 

Sports section as well as an emerging Youth 

contingent. Her goal of winning the Victorian 

Masters State Titles has also been achieved. 

The Surf Sports section is so grateful to Iris for 

her service to the club and the athletes and wish 

her well. 

Jon Ford 

Head Coach

 

Surf Boat Report

It’s been a promising season for the Boat 

section. Whilst we continue to develop our 

crews, we are also establishing the 

foundations for the future of surf boat rowing at 

the Club. 

 

We are extremely proud to have secured 

sponsorship for a new surfboat this season. 

The new boat was delivered late in May. 

Sincere thanks also to our trailer sponsors who 

contributed to our fundraiser for the purchase 

of a new boat trailer. Since returning to the 

Club in recent years I have been humbled by 

the generosity and support of members as we 

strive to build a sustainable surf boat section. 

 

We are aligned to our strategic plan, and with 

recent expressions of interest from varying age 

groups, we are confident of fielding multiple 

crews next season across a range of divisions. 

I have always emphasised the importance of 

representing the Club by competing at 

carnivals and whilst improving results, we’re 

promoting the future of rowing at the Club.  

We presented two male crews this season 

who represented the Club both locally and 

interstate. The Open Men’s crew, 

“Pachyderms” (below) travelled to the highly 

rated Australian Surf Rowers League (ASRL) 

Championships at Mollymook NSW competing 

against elite crews from around the nation. 

The racing was first class, and the crew were 

able to gain some much-needed match racing 

competition. 

 

On return from the ASRL event they were 

struck down with injury leading into the 

Victorian State Championships. Fortunately, 

Dylan Cresswell, the former Prospectors rower 

was available and slotted in for the injured 

Bryon Marshall. In a close final the crew 

demonstrated their potential flat-water boat 

speed finishing with a Bronze medal. This is 

the first Open Men’s State medal since 1999. 

Congratulations to the crew of Andrew 

Goldstein (stroke), James Walsh (3) Dylan 
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Cresswell (2) Grahame Barber (Bow) Bryon 

Marshall (ASRL) and Sweep Brett O’Loughlin. 

Thanks to the crew for their contribution this 

season. 

 

The Reserve/Masters Crew Platos turned back 

the clock and the memories. Led by the 

energetic Andrew Cromb, the crew reignited 

their competitive juices with a training 

schedule and competition calendar worthy of 

an U23 crew. Swept by former competitive 

U19 Sweep Ant ‘Davo’ Davis, the crew 

competed in the Reserve competition 

throughout the season making the final at 

States, and taking the Silver medal in the 

220yrs at the LSV State Masters 

Championships. But wait, there’s more! They 

then packed their bags and travelled to the 

SLSA Australian Championships at Alexandra 

Headland Qld where they showed good form 

early, only to narrowly miss the final in the 

220yrs Masters division. I’m particularly proud 

of these guys who have returned to the fold 

and embraced the opportunity to represent the 

Club in competition. It sends a message to all 

past boaties that regardless of age or gender, 

you can be involved, whether it be to compete, 

stay active or just to enjoy some time with old 

friends. I started out rowing with these guys as 

U18s and it’s just awesome to see them back 

in the boat shed at the Club. Thanks go to the 

crew of Ant Williams (stroke) Andrew Cromb 

(3) Alan Latto (2) Neville Smith (Bow) and 

Sweep Ant ‘Davo’ Davis (below) for their 

dedication and efforts this season. 

As always, we simply can’t function as a 

section without the support of our sponsors, 

committee and friends of boaties. Our sincere 

thanks and gratitude to the Balnarring and 

District Community Bank Branch of Bendigo 

Bank for their generosity in providing us the  

opportunity to purchase a new surf boat. 

 

Special thanks also to: 

• Kim Williams, ‘The Glue’ for her relentless 

attention to detail, her patience in herding 

cats and assisting me to keep the balls in 

the air with finances 

• Tamara Brawn, ‘The Overseer’ for keeping 

an eye on the technical aspects and 

always available to provide sound advice 

• Ant Williams ‘The Closer’ for his ability to 

just make things happen. Cool and calm, 

he always has a plan and follows it 

through 

• Julia O’Shaughnessy for her patience and 

understanding with the Billboard Boat 

project and the delays with the delivery of 

the new boat 

• John Horwood and The Bobbas. True 

friends of the boaties and dedicated 

patrons of Dude’s Bar. John is always 

calling for updates on results and boatie 

news, then proudly reporting to the 

Bobbas community throughout Australia 

• Nick Clarke, ‘The MacGyver’ of the club, 

Nick has assisted us with the Billboard 

Boat Project and other work scopes at the 

club 

• The Andrew’s, (Gibson/Welsh) ‘The 

Reliables’ always available whenever I call 

for assistance from interstate 

The Platos 
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I’m positive about the future of boats at the 

Club and what we as a section have to offer 

the wider club membership. Don’t die 

wondering! If you want exhilaration, comradery 

and the opportunity to challenge Mother 

Nature, you need to row surf boats! 

 

Thanks to all our supporters. 

Mark (Macca) McDermott 

Point Leo Surf Boats 

Masters Report 

The Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Masters 

team had an exceptional season in 2021. For the 

first time in over thirty years of competing, the 

Club won the overall State Masters 

Championship. 

 

The competition this year was held over two 

separate days: at Lorne for Water events and 

Altona for Beach. This very successful format is 

likely to be repeated in 2022 allowing greater 

participation from athletes in all chosen events 

and easier access for the Beachies. The Club 

dominated both carnivals with a team of 45 

athletes attending over the two days. It was 

amazing to see so many new athletes, 

regardless of capabilities, having a go; most 

coming home with a medal or two. The Point Leo 

Club spirit was on full display with great 

camaraderie and many laughs. Our final point 

score of 503 more than doubled the second 

placed club. 

 

There were some great individual performances 

at States with Head Coach Jon Ford the 

absolute standout of the Carnival, coming home 

with his 6th consecutive Victorian Ironman title, 

five Gold medals, 3 Silver and one Bronze. Other 

standouts included Jane Starr (4 Gold, 2 Silver), 

Nathan Millar (4 Gold, 2 Silver, 2 Bronze), Dana 

Sawyer, Dave Russell and Michelle Ford (3 Gold 

+ minor medals). 

 

Jon Ford (right) went on to be the Club’s only 

individual athlete at the Australian Masters 

Championships. He made the final of the 

Ironman and finished in fifth place, achieving a 

long-standing personal goal. We are all very 

proud of Jon’s performance. 

 

Whilst the Club has always had a few athletes 

who dominate their age group, this season we 

fielded a large team with a good spread of 

abilities, really bolstering our points tally. This 

was largely due to great recruiting of Nipper 

parents in the lead up to the season and regular 

Masters training sessions three times weekly 

during the summer holidays. These sessions are 

now continuing on a Wednesday morning 

(Martha Cove at 6am), Saturdays (downwind 

paddling session) and Sundays (mobile ocean 

swim at 9am). There is already a planned 

Masters Coolangatta Gold team heading to 

Queensland in October and a number of Masters 

already committed to the 2022 Aussies in Perth.  

 

Special thanks from the Club’s Masters team go 

to Iris Cassell who after many years as our Team 

Manager is stepping down. Iris has had a long-

term goal to win State Masters and she achieved 

this in 2021! She will continue to be a presence 

on the beach but her leadership and support of 

our Masters athletes will be greatly missed. 

Andrew Gibson 

Masters Competition Coordinator 
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Surf Sports Awards 

Open Male Athlete of the Year – Josh Doherty 

Training for the Ironman requires a strong base 

developed over years of training and a full winter 

program. Unfortunately, due to COVID-19 surf 

clubs on the east coast were unable to 

commence training until December 2020, unlike 

the west coast and most of Australia. Despite 

this Josh slotted into his 15 session a week 

program with discipline and enthusiasm and was 

a key leader at training for the rest of the season. 

Josh had a strong Victorian State Titles coming 

away with a number of medals including Gold in 

the Open Surf Race and Open Board Rescue 

with Harry Atkins. Aussies was a tough year 

partly due to our inability to compete at an 

interstate carnival for the last 20 months, 

however, Josh competed strongly in a range of 

events. Congratulations Josh for being the 

recipient of the Open Male Athlete of the Year 

Award. 

 

Open Female Athlete of the Year – Isabella 

Austin 

Bella is one of our strongest athletes and had a 

great season in her last year of U19 and open 

racing. She was a consistent top 3 performer at 

Victorian carnivals and came away with 10 

medals at the Victorian State Titles, including 

Gold in Open Taplin Relay and Bronze medals in 

Open Ski, Open Board, Open Double Ski, Open 

Board Relay, Open Ski Relay, and Open Iron 

(deciding not to prioritise this over U19 Iron). 

Bella narrowly missed the Aussie finals in Open 

Mixed Double Ski, Open Double Ski, U19 Board 

and U19 Ski and was our best competitor at this 

event. Congratulations Bella for being the 

recipient of the Open Female Athlete of the Year 

Award. 

 

Masters Athlete of the Year - Jon Ford 

Jon has competed in Masters events over many 

years and each year he has had some great 

takeaways and ponderings from his competitive 

racing. This season was an exceptional one. Jon 

actively engaged the largest Point Leo Masters 

team to compete at the LSV State Masters 

Championships. He dedicated a program of 

training specifically to create a ‘can do’ attitude 

amongst the Masters team who thrived from the 

outset and progressively grew in numbers. His 

drive and dedication were an integral reason for 

the team’s success in achieving the State 

Masters Championship Title for Point Leo Surf 

Life Saving Club this season. Jon accumulated 5 

Gold, 3 Silver and 1 Bronze medal in his cache 

of medals from the championship event. He went 

on to compete at the Australian Masters Titles at 

Maroochydore this year where he achieved a 

personal goal and placed 5th in the Australian 

Championships 55-59 Ironman final. This is an 

outstanding effort and is a great example by the 

Head Coach. Congratulations Jon on an epic 

season. 

 

Junior Male Athlete of the Year - Tom 

Lillywhite 

Tom is in his second season of the Youth age 

group. He has demonstrated his talent for 

running in both long distance and sprint events. 

At the Youth/Senior State championships Tom 

was successful in long distance with a Silver 

Medal in the U15 2k run. He is a great team 

competitor and was a member of the Youth 

Mixed Beach Relay and Youth Male Beach 

Relay teams achieving Gold and Silver medals, 

respectively. We look forward to seeing Tom 

progress into the senior ranks of the team.  

 

Junior Female Athlete of the Year Hannah 

Cester 

Hannah has competed for Point Leo Surf 

Lifesaving Club for several years. She is a 

committed lifesaver and has set her cap firmly on 

the Champion Lifesaver event. This is one of the 

Surf Lifesaving blue ribbon events that 

encapsulates all areas of lifesaving. The event 

takes the best part of a whole day and includes 

swim, board and sprint races, a rescue tube 

race, first aid, CPR and a written theory exam. 

Hannah achieved a Gold Medal for this event at 

the State Titles and was invited to represent 

Victoria at the Australian Championships. Hanna 

placed 9th in the U15 age group. She was also a 

member of the Youth Mixed Beach Relay Team 

achieving a Gold Medal in this event. 

 

Team of the Year - Open Women’s Taplin 

Relay - Isabella Austin (board), Kate Brooks 

(swim), Isabella Ford (ski) 

Our open women have completed one of the 

best competitive races of the season with a 

robust win in the Open Women’s Taplin Relay. 
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The Taplin Relay is a premium event of 3 

disciplines - Board, Swim and Ski. Our athletes 

have competed together for the past several 

years and it is the first time the women’s section 

have had success at the Open level in this event. 

Congratulations to these dedicated women on 

your achievement. It was certainly a brilliant race 

to watch. 

 

John Marshall Swim Competitor of the Year 

Henry (Harry) Atkins 

Harry has shown great commitment to training 

and sport since resuming his membership as a 

Senior competitor at Point Leo. This season he 

was actively engaged in competition and 

represented the club as our Swim Captain. Other 

club activities included practical involvement in 

the Swim Camp, teaching in our School Surf 

Aware Program and assisting in the swim area of 

the JSLP. Harry successfully completed the 

swim legs in both Board Rescue and Rescue 

Tube Rescue races, winning Gold Medals in 

both events. He was also involved in the Point 

Leo LifeChanger program. 

 

Board and Ski Competitor of the Year – Myles 

Irwin 

Myles has been competing for the club since 

joining as a Cadet 8 years ago with good levels 

of success, particularly on ski in U17/19. Over 

the past few years he has transitioned to Seniors 

and approached the task with a high level of 

application and discipline, particularly in the gym 

and on the water in a kayak. This has greatly 

benefited Myles’ technique and water feel. In the 

2020-2021 season this resulted in some strong 

top 5 finishes in Open Ski at Victorian carnivals 

and a near miss in making the Open Mixed 

Double Ski finals at Aussies with Bella Austin. 

Congratulations Myles for being the recipient of 

the Board and Ski Athlete of the Year Award. 

 

Beach Competitor of the Year - Abigail 

Morgan 

Abi is new to the Competition team joining the 

club as a Cadet this season. It was great to see 

Abi have some amazing individual results as well 

as combining with other youth athletes for 3 Gold 

medals at the Victorian State Titles. Her Gold 

medals were achieved in the U15 Women’s 

Beach Sprint, the Youth Mixed Beach Relay and 

the Youth Women’s Beach Relay. We look 

forward to seeing Abi compete for Point Leo in 

future State Titles and hopefully Aussies in the 

coming years! Congratulations Abi for being the 

recipient of the Beach Athlete of the Year Award. 

 

 

Members & Club Life 

 

Junior Surf Life Saving Program 

The 2020-2021 season has truly been like no 

other for the Junior Surf Lifesaving Program 

(JSLP). The season started with the introduction 

of the JSLP Team consisting of myself co-

ordinating for the first time, Sarah-Jo Mason 

moving to Vice President Juniors, Tarena Murray 

taking up the JSLP Representative position and 

Kylie Clark as Junior Team Manager. Thank you 

to this team for their support, commitment and 

seemingly endless hours of meetings and 

planning. They strived to ensure our Nipper 

program did operate this season, wanted to 

focus on positively delivering a COVID Safe 

program, operating within the extensive COVID 

Government restrictions and new LSV 

requirements. 

Nippers did look different, but the usual friendly 

Nipper faces made it all worthwhile. We 

concentrated on what we could do this season 

and our objectives for Nippers were focussed on 

participation, connection, fun and wellbeing, skill 

development and maintaining the quality of our 

program. 

 

The Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club was one of 

the biggest programs in Victoria to operate in the 

2020-2021 season under COVID-19 restrictions. 

Thanks to the tireless efforts of Kim Williams as 

Registrar, we were able to open our Nipper 

program to 404 Nippers this season with the 

Cubs and Lions participating on separate days 

for the first time. 



Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. | ABN 83 471 063 765 | pointleoslsc.com.au  Page | 21  

 

Congratulations to our Junior Club Co-Captains 

(pictured above) Joe Collingwood, Fred Handley, 

Layla Romari and Harriet Kogler for leading our 

Nippers during such an unusual season. 

 

The intensive program included 11 restricted 

sessions in total, with only the Under 14s having 

their own Club Championship Day. Age groups 

were placed into their ‘units’ of 20 Nippers, some 

in mixed groups of boys and girls. Nippers 

arrived at their allocated unit time and ‘checked 

in’ with their Age Group Managers (AGM) and 

Assistant Age Group Managers (AAGM) in the 

Club car park (below) and with the Club QR 

code. They then entered the beach via the new 

path created on the Eastern side of the 

clubhouse. Many thanks to Andrew Gibson for 

co-ordinating this with the Foreshore. 

 

The four beach areas were fenced with bunting 

for family spectators, with our AGM and AAGM 

in their unit-coloured vests. Nippers didn’t move 

around the beach to their normal rotations, 

instead they remained in their beach area with 

activity leaders swapping between water and 

beach activities. COVID-19 restrictions meant 

Nipper sessions were concentrated into smaller 

groups with less movement. There was a great 

appreciation of all the AGMs and AAGMs and 

Activity Leaders who took on board the strict 

COVID-19 Government restrictions and assisted 

in these roles, some for the first time. Thank you 

all for taking on these roles and adapting to our 

new way of operating for the season. 

 

Particular thanks to the following people who 

spent countless hours preparing for the very 

different Nipper season which required a 

heightened level of planning and coordination. 

Andrew Welsh who spearheaded our gear and 

equipment preparation, management and 

allocation to ensure we were COVID safe at all 

times. Andrew Ford for coordinating the beach 

set up crews, Sarah Somogyi who co-ordinated 

the many volunteer online rosters and Alex 

McManamey who prepared the spreadsheets 

and information for AGMs and Dee Longwill for 

her ongoing superb administration skills in 

uploading all the Nipper information to the LSV 

system. 

 

Thanks also to our beach setup and pack-up 

crews, COVID-19 Marshals, First Aid Officers 

and various admin support volunteers. Without 

you the JSLP wouldn’t run. 

 

The newest addition to the JSLP session 

volunteers were the unit COVID-19 Officers 

donning their blue vests. The COVID-19 Officers 

ensured all protocols were followed. Never have 

our flags and boards been so clean! The scene 

on the beach was not the normal hustle and 

bustle of a large group of 250 Nippers. Instead, it 

was a calmer affair with only 80 Nippers on the 

beach at one time for only one hour rather than 

the normal two hours. Surf Education had to be 

embedded into the sessions as for the first time 

there was no access to the clubhouse. 

 

While carnivals were challenging and limited this 

season, the Sunday Sessions for Nippers were a 

great opportunity to build skills, for those who 

were interested, and an enhanced pathway to 

competition. Thank you to Daniel Kogler who co-

ordinated the Nipper Sunday Sessions. 
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While the 2020-2021 season was different, I 

think that all enjoyed the unexpected 

opportunities it presented for families. Nippers 

highlighted the importance of the social 

connections to other members and the 

importance of developing children’s surf skills, 

confidence and awareness. 

 

It was a great privilege to be the JSLP Co-

ordinator for the 2020-2021 season and to follow 

in my mother’s footsteps. It is amazing to think 

that the program has more than doubled in size 

since the 1990’s when she was co-ordinator. A 

great demonstration of what an important 

program it is and what a special part it plays in 

the Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club. 

Junior Surf Sports Program (JSSP) 

This season’s training was delayed in the water 

and on the beach due to COVID-19 restrictions 

but that didn’t stop training and fitness moving 

online for a short while. Finally, training resumed 

following the JSSP COVID-19 safety plan with 

capped numbers. Numbers eventually increased 

with over 40 different Nippers attending sessions 

on Tuesday and Thursday evenings. Thank you 

to Nick Clarke our Junior Coach for leading our 

Nippers during a challenging start to the season. 

Thanks also to the parents and siblings who 

assisted with coaching and water safety for 

these sessions. 

 

Water Safety 

A big thank you to Chuck Warner for 

coordinating the IRB team each session and our 

Water Safety Co-ordinators this year, Michael 

Westaway (Lions) and Adam Kyriacou (Cubs) 

who ensured our Nippers were kept safe in the 

water. Thank you to all our Senior members and 

Nipper parents who were water safety captains 

for each water area. A huge thank you also to all 

our youth members who helped with water 

safety. Our Nipper program simply cannot 

operate without our safety requirements being 

met and to see our Cadets and Active Juniors 

come back and help years after they have 

graduated is just fantastic. This was one of the 

first opportunities for these young people to 

socialise after months of lockdown. Due to the 

restrictions of the Nipper program, water safety 

was needed for 3 x 1 hour blocks with half an 

hour in between. The last hour of water safety 

everyone needed to dig deep. Thanks to the 

quick thinking of Sarah-Jo and the assistance of 

some Bobbas, water safety managed to sustain 

themselves with the only BBQ of the 2020-2021 

season. 

 

Thanks also to our many IRB drivers and crews 

who spend hours in the boat on Nipper days, but 

also spend hours setting up the cans and doing 

all that is required to get the IRBs into and out of 

the water each session. 

 

It was great that two of our Nippers, Angus Ellery 

and Zoe Watt (below) , participated in the annual 

under 13 LSV Development Camp in April. 

 

JSLP Volunteers 

This was my first year in a new role as the Junior 

Surf Life Saving Program Representative and 

what a year to take it on. The Club and the 

success of the Nipper program relies on its 

volunteers. Especially in the year of COVID-19! 

With over 400 Nippers and the smaller group 

sizes, as well as Cubs and Lions running on 

different days, the workload doubled for some of 

the volunteer roles. We also had the inception of 

a newly created role, the COVID-19 Marshal. 

The Nipper BBQ was a sad loss this year. I can’t 

Under 11 boys 
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wait to see return. Everyone who took on any 

role or jumped in last minute to assist, I can’t 

thank you enough. From Age Group Managers, 

Assistant Age Group Managers, Activity 

Leaders, COVID-19 Marshals, water safety, first 

aid, beach set up and pack up, or helping 

Nippers find their way and much more. The tasks 

are endless, and it is only by people stepping up 

that the Nipper program happens. If this was 

your first year in one of these roles a massive 

‘well done’ to you. 

 

I would personally like to thank all the volunteers 

who either contacted me straight away to put 

their hand up or were quite happy to sign up 

when SOS emails were sent out. With the 

smaller groups we needed far more AGMs and 

AAGMs than previous years, but thanks to all of 

you, those roles were filled. 

 

Thank you to all our volunteers - you are 

AWESOME! 

 

In the future our Nipper program will still rely on 

everyone in some way. So, don’t be a stranger, 

when the time comes, grab the chance to 

volunteer again in our wonderful Nipper program. 

 

Tarena Murray 

Junior Surf Life Saving Program Representative 

 

Junior Competition 

The 2020-2021 Junior Competition season was 

certainly one like no other. Unfortunately, due to 

COVID-19, LSV Nipper Competition was 

restricted to the U12/13 age groups only, with 

just two local carnivals – Mordialloc (beach 

events only, due to water quality) and Ocean 

Grove, with the State Championships in March 

2021 held in Warrnambool. 

 

Our younger age groups competed in a carnival 

at Lorne hosted by Surf Sports Development (a 

private business). It was a fabulous opportunity 

for the youngsters to either have a go in a 

competition scenario, or for our seasoned 

competitors to race. 

 

All our competing Nippers are to be commended 

this season. They rallied from the 

disappointment of minimal carnival activity, to 

embody the Point Leo spirit in the three carnivals 

on offer. The Mordialloc carnival was a beach 

event only so our water-loving Nippers replaced 

their goggles with flags and batons and gave it 

their all. The Ocean Grove carnival was a 

fabulous day, with all our U12/13 competitors 

enjoying the surf and finally being back in the 

water racing. 

 

We took 38 U12/13 Nippers to Warrnambool to 

compete in a COVID-19 restricted Junior State 

Lifesaving Championships. There were some 

outstanding performances at the State 

Championships, all of which are noted later in 

this report, but special mentions include: 

• Point Leo came second overall in the Junior 

State Lifesaving Championships to Ocean 

Grove SLSC 

• The March Past Team, led by Jan Williams 

and Dianne and John Silver, were 

outstanding, and brought home a Bronze 

medal 

• Charlie Farrell won the LSV U13 Champion 

Athlete – Boys Water Award 2021 

• Point Leo won three out of the four individual 

board race medals, and the U13 girls board 

relay in heavy, unpredictable surf; a 

testament to the hard work they put in during 

the season in the JSSP, under the tutelage 

of Nick Clarke 

• The three young seniors, Madison Clark, Nat 

Clarke and Jasper Romari, excelled all 

weekend, in supporting the team, 

volunteering to do unscheduled water safety 

to keep the carnival going, and exemplified 

the culture and environment of our club 

 

Of course, Nippers cannot compete without a 

team of volunteers and a coach. Thank-you to 

Nick Clarke, who managed to motivate, inspire 

and encourage our Nippers. The results speak 

for themselves. To the AGMs who kept me on 

track and corralled their Nippers and  the army of 

volunteers that completed water safety, IRB 

driving/crewing, officiating, pack/set up, trailer 

driving and cheering – thank-you. There are too 

many to name – you all know who you are. 

 

To all the Nippers who worked hard throughout 

the season and persevered through all of the 

challenges that COVID-19 threw at you – 

congratulations. You should all be extremely 

proud of yourselves. I was proud to represent 
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Point Leo as your Team Manager – thank-you 

for having me. 

 

Kylie Clark 

Team Manager (Junior)  

 

On behalf of the JSLP team we look forward to 

what the next JSLP season will bring and seeing 

everyone together again. 

Dianna McKellar 

Junior Surf Life Saving Program 

Coordinator 

Youth 

This season saw a resurgence of the club youth 

program. We took a different approach and 

thanks to a group of enthusiastic parents, the 

“Lion’s Den” was born. The Lion’s Den was 

developed to leverage off the invigorated U14 

program and address the Club’s issue of 

engaging and retaining the pivotal age group of 

U15s after being immersed in an extensive 

Nipper program from U7s to U14s. 

 

We called the annual seasonal 

(December/January) Youth Program the Lion’s 

Den, so the Club has a program with a 

welcoming and nurturing appeal. The program 

offers a special place for this age group where 

they feel valued and wanted that is different from 

Nippers and, most importantly, reflects the 

Club’s overall wholistic approach to youth 

wellbeing. 

 

A specific club Youth Handbook was developed 

that outlined all the club activities and contact 

persons for the different club sections that have 

a youth touch point. The Youth Handbook also 

specifically detailed the Lion’s Den activities 

available which together provided further 

opportunities to: 

• Be a valued and active member of the Club 

• Do fun things and keep in touch with 

lifesaving friends 

• Keep up lifesaving skills and fitness 

• Learn new lifesaving skills and discover new 

experiences 

• Understand how other parts of the Club 

operate 

• Be inspired to stay involved in surf lifesaving 

over the longer term 

 

The centrepiece of the Lion’s Den was the Swim 

Camp. It included several essential dimensions 

of the overall Youth Program and incorporated 

the fundamental skill required to be a great surf 

lifesaver – swimming. It was a special and 

unique offering for the U15s and enabled them to 

start creating networks with Senior members of 

the Club. 

 

The Lion’s Den also included important 

opportunities such as Nipper water safety, social 

events, beach and water sessions and a First 

Aid Course in order to reconnect and strengthen 

connections with peers and the Club whilst 

maintaining competent skill levels and learning 

new skills. All are important aspects to building 

confidence and engagement, particularly after a 

winter of being engrossed in other parts of life, 

and this season enduring COVID-19 in isolation 

from the community and away from the Club 

environment. 

 

Underpinning the program was the partnership 

the club forged with BlueScope Westernport. 

With a mutual interest in youth mental health and 

wellbeing, it was a natural partnership that 

enabled us to incorporate some important 

aspects into the Lion’s Den offering. Many 

thanks to Julia O’Shaughnessy for nurturing the 

sponsorship with BlueScope Westernport and 

Sarah-Jo Mason for writing the successful 

sponsorship proposal resulting in funds being 

secured that enabled the program to proceed. 

 

Thanks to BlueScope Westernport, the under 15 

Swim Camp included a participant pack and 

incorporated some positive wellbeing sessions 

for participants. We utilised the rich skills, 

resources and connections within our club 
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membership to deliver these sessions and 

ensure they were especially suitable for our 

youth lifesavers. Thanks to Tara Doherty and 

Adam Kyriacou for giving so generously of their 

time and sharing their expertise to give the Lion’s 

Den such an incredible edge. Your passion was 

infectious. 

 

The bonus of the sensational BlueScope 

Westernport Lion’s Den T-shirts set the scene for 

some great times ahead. Many thanks to Anna 

Cahill and Rocket Boy Studio for providing such 

incredible creative designs. 

 

Finally, a special thanks to Sam Hunt who 

stepped up as our Vice President Youth and led 

the development and rollout of the Lion’s Den, 

amending and adjusting it to ensure it met 

COVID-19 requirements. Without his hands-on 

commitment, the Lion’s Den would not have 

proceeded. We also thank our Senior members 

for their support and leadership on the program: 

Harry Atkins (Swim Captain), Will Laussen, 

Maddie Clark, Grace Handley, Kate Brooks, Tara 

Doherty, Adam Kyriacou, Travis Cargill, Zali 

Cargill and all the parents who supported and 

encouraged their youth to participate. 

 

The combined efforts of all ensured all Lion’s 

Den activities were well attended with our Swim 

Camp and First Aid Courses booked out. It was 

great to see every youth member take part in at 

least one Lion’s Den activity this season – 

thanks for your participation! 

 

It is unfortunate that COVID-19 prohibited the 

Mental Health First Aid course (incorporating a 

youth focus) to proceed for our broader club 

members, so we are looking forward to 

implementing this important component next 

season, building on the strong Lion’s Den 

framework from this season. 

 

We can’t wait to hear the roar from the Lion’s 

Den again next season! 

 

Youth Development Team

 

Honorary Life Members 

This year we were pleased to appoint three new 

Life Members to the Point Leo SLSC: 

• Marc Aliotti 

• Louise Tierney 

• Dr John Silver 

 

Marc Aliotti joined the Club in 2001 and was a 

committee member for eight years, including 

three as President (2007-2009). He has held 

multiple lifesaving awards including the always-

required IRB Driver and Crew to ensure we can 

cover patrol, water safety and Nipper program 

commitments.  

 

During his 19 years of service Marc has 

averaged 22 hours patrol each season, which is 

above the club and competition requirements. At 

the time of his appointment to Life Membership, 

Marc had won 20 Masters State Championship 

medals, 13 of which were Gold, but was more 

importantly valued by the team for his 

enthusiastic club spirit in supporting all athletes 

to achieve their best. 

 

Marc is a highly valued all-round club member 

who actively supports club events and 

fundraising.  

 

Louise Tierney joined the Club in 1973 as a 

member of the Women’s Auxiliary that ran 

fundraising and social events and supported the 
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running of the Point Leo carnivals each season. 

This work included the behind-the-scenes work 

required when “Leo was Alive in 1985” as host of 

the Australian Championships. Louise was also 

a lead member of the small sub-committee who 

planned and coordinated the 50th Anniversary 

celebrations. 

 

Louise has always supported her family’s 

interest in surf sports and the development of 

young people, which is most evident in her work 

to launch the Gary Tierney Foundation in 2010 to 

support active members to achieve their goals in 

lifesaving training, sport, patrols and community 

development. Louise has served on the 

Foundation board since its launch. 

 

Louise continues to show her passion for all 

things orange as an annual member of the 

support crew at State and Aussie Titles and is 

easy to spot at Nippers sharing the love for Leo 

with the next generation. 

 

Dr John Silver gained his Bronze Medallion in 

1959. In his early years, while studying medicine 

he was one of the most popular and charismatic 

members of the Club and a fine athlete, 

representing the Club in the Beach Sprint, Flags, 

Beach Relay and March Past events at surf 

carnivals, recording numerous wins. 

John served on the Club committee as First Aid 

Officer for 5 years between 1962 and 1967, and 

then became Club Honorary Medical Officer in 

1968, until at least 1975 (when our records 

unfortunately become a little sketchy. If anyone 

has annual reports or Mines from this period the 

Club would appreciate a copy). 

 

In 2005 John contributed to the writing and 

preparation of the Club’s 50-year history and has 

been an active Bobba since their formation. 

More recently John has revised his passion for 

the March Past by re-starting the Nipper March 

Past Competition Team by sourcing equipment 

and uniforms and running training at the Club. 

These efforts resulted in a Silver medal at the 

2020 Junior State Championships. 

 

John’s contribution over many years promotes 

the values of Point Leo and it is timely to 

acknowledge his work and we welcome him as 

an Honorary Life Member. 

 

VALE John Silver. The Club was saddened to 

learn that Doctor John Silver passed away on 

Sunday 11 July 2021. 

 

Tamara Brawn 

Honorary Life Members Committee 

Gary Tierney Foundation 

The Past Twelve Months 
The Foundation has been pleased to again 

support many young Club members over the 

past year. The Advisory Board was excited to 

offer three Gary Tierney Foundation Fellowships, 

continue its financial support to recent Fellows, 

and to make financial contributions to the 

younger team members attending Aussies in 

Queensland.  

 

Outgoings on grants and subsidies exceeded 

income by $1,895 due to a combination of 

factors, including the decision to award three 

Fellowship Grants to worthy recipients. This 

small loss is not of concern to the Advisory 

Board, having regard to the long-term position of 

the Fund and the overall strength of the Balance 

Sheet. At year end, the Fund balance was just 

under $250,000, ahead of its initial target corpus 

of $200,000. 

 

The Foundation has continued its conservative 

approach to fundraising with income being 

sourced only from donations and interest 

received from cash investments. The bulk of its 

funds are invested in term deposits, whilst 

historically, 1/3 of the fund was invested in a 

balanced investment account with the Surf Life 

Saving Foundation (SLSF). While not recognised 

as income for the purposes of the financial 

summary, the Foundation’s balance sheet has 

benefited from unrealized gains in the SLSF 

Rescue Fund investment of some $16,000 for 

the year. 
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Gary Tierney Foundation 2021 Fellows 
The 2021 Fellowships were awarded to three 

young Club members: Caitlin Robinson, Ella 

Laussen and Isabella Austin. Each of the 

candidates for the Fellowship Award this year 

was outstanding and the Advisory Board had a 

difficult task in selecting the 2021 Fellows. It 

really is a reflection of the quality of our younger 

Lifesavers, and after much consideration it was 

decided to award three Fellowships for the year. 

 

Caitlin, Isabella and Ella (below) all joined the 

Club as Nippers and all have continued in 

various roles as they progressed through more 

senior activities. 

 

Caitlin Robinson emerged as a particularly good 

swimmer in both ocean and pool competition and 

has been involved in leadership roles in the swim 

section. Caitlin has helped organize swim 

programs, establishing a senior swim squad and 

is planning the return of the Point Leo swim 

camp. 

 

Ella Laussen, after gaining her Bronze, decided 

that she would complete as many Lifesaving 

awards as possible and her short-term goals 

have already been achieved. Ella took a 

leadership role in staging the Club’s first Pink 

Patrol in 2020, is a Patrol Captain and hopes to 

be involved in the LSV Building Leaders 

Scholarship program. 

 

Isabella Austin has been a wonderful competitor 

and has achieved many podium finishes in all 

levels of surf  competition through to regularly 

competing at State Championships. Bella is 

highly regarded in LSV circles because of her 

attitude and determination when competing and 

because of this has many strong connections in 

other LSV Clubs. 

Caitlin, Isabella and Ella have always been 

prepared to be involved in helping with Nipper 

activities such as water safety, board camps and 

activity leader roles. All three have been happy 

to help at tin rattles, muso nights and bronze 

camps when needed. Certainly, each of them 

has  demonstrated the best of lifesaving and 

they have the potential to make an ongoing 

positive contribution to Point Leo SLSC and 

lifesaving overall. 

 

Previous recipients of the Fellowship Award are: 

 

2011  Lachlan Pearse 2016  Caleb Gray 

2012  Victoria 
Roadnight and Tom 
McFarlane 

2017  Brittany 
Morgenthaler and 
Andrew Nott 

2013  Rose Anderson 
2018  Lachlan 
Robinson 

2014  Jack Garner 
2019  Josh Doherty 
and Sam Richardson 

2015  Bella Ford and 
Zachary Richter 

2020  Rhys Cole 

 
Financials 
As at 30 April 2021 the Gary Tierney Foundation 

Fund balance stands at $249,446 an increase of 

$14,191 over the prior year. Income for the year 

was $7,269 from donations and bank interest. 

Outgoings amounting to $9,164 comprised 

$7,200 in Fellowship Grants, $1,900 in subsidies 

to younger club competitors attending the SLSA 

National Championships in Queensland, and 

sundries of $64. 

 

Income 2020-2021   

Donations  $        5,700.00  

Interest: Operating account  $             12.77  

Interest: Term deposits  $        1,556.23  

Total  $        7,269.00  

Expenditure 2020-2021   

Grants  $        7,200.00  

Certificates  $             64.00  

Subsidies  $        1,900.00  

Total  $        9,164.00  

    

Net Surplus (Loss) ($       1,895.00)  

 

The Foundation’s long-term investment of 

$70,000 in the Surf Life Saving Rescue Fund 

was valued at $90,477 at 30 April 2021, an 

increase of $16,086 since 2020. The upturn 
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occurred because of the improvement in global 

financial markets following the impacts on 

investments in the previous year due to the 

Pandemic situation. The Advisory Board will be 

watching this investment closely. The balance of 

funds invested of $158,989 is with the Bendigo 

Bank in cash and term deposits at prevailing 

market rates of interest. 

 

The Future 

The Advisory Board will continue to provide 

financial support to allow younger members of 

Point Leo SLSC to fulfil their potential in surf 

lifesaving. The Foundation will provide grants or 

funding as Fellowship Grants or as Single 

Purpose Grants.  

 

Gary Tierney Foundation Governance 

The Gary Tierney Foundation is managed by an 

Advisory Board. During the year, the Board 

consisted of Tom Mollenkopf (Chairperson), 

John Horwood, Haydn Tierney, Bella Ford, 

Kelvin Anderson, Tamara Brawn and Luke 

Treadwell. The Foundation’s Patron is Louise 

Tierney. 

 

The Foundation’s finances are audited annually 

as part of the Club’s statutory audit and it 

maintains a separate bank account to ensure 

that donations to the Foundation are quarantined 

and only used in accordance with and as 

specified by the Foundation’s Governance 

Charter. 

 

TOM MOLLENKOPF 

Chairperson, Gary Tierney Foundation

Point Leo Swim Classic 

In 2020, due to COVID-19 complexities, we 

held a virtual Swim Classic and Honeysuckle 

Run instead of the usual event at Point Leo 

beach on Boxing Day. It was great to keep the 

tradition going despite being a little different 

and we focussed on what we could achieve 

when participation at public events was 

restricted. 

 

Many thanks to Kim Williams for helping 

manage the virtual event and Haydn Tierney 

for organising another awesome Swim Classic 

T-Shirt from Golden Breed. 

 

We also greatly appreciate the Balnarring and 

District Community Bank for their continued 

support of the 2.5km Swim Challenge and 

Bluegum for their sponsorship of our spot 

prizes. 

 

We are delighted to report that the Point Leo 

virtual swim/run was well attended with 222 

participants and an amazing $6,000 (including 

donations and sponsorship) raised for the club. 

We look forward to our beautiful beach being 

filled with our keen Point Leo Swim Classic 

swimmers and runners as usual on Boxing 

Day 2021. 

 

Sarah-Jo Mason 

Swim Classic Co-ordinator 

Point Leo SLSC Bobbas 

Over the past twelve months the activities of 

the Bobbas have been a little restricted 

because of the COVID-19 situation. The 

Bobbas, formed as a group back in 1968 as a 

vehicle for past members of the Club to keep 

in touch with each other, would normally get 

together four times annually – three times for 

lunch at the Kooyong Lawn Tennis Club and 

once at the annual Bobbas and Partners 

luncheon held at the clubhouse at Point Leo. 

Unfortunately, none of these occasions 

occurred during this past year. 

 

As a group we did keep in contact with each 

other through email and phone means, and 

still put out a type of newsletter titled ‘The 

Bobbas Bugle’ on certain occasions. In late 

January 2021, the Club held a pandemic-

regulated function at the clubhouse where new 

Honorary Life Members – Louise Tierney, 

Doctor John Silver and Marc Aliotti were 
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inducted and a number of Bobbas were 

present, including Dick Ellis, Club Life Patron 

and his wife Heather. 

 

Also, a group of Bobbas got together on a 

Friday evening in the clubhouse at Dude’s Bar 

for a regular catch up. All in line with pandemic 

rules and clubhouse regulations of course. 

 

Another function of the Bobbas is to help out 

as much as possible at Club activities, such as 

carparking on Boxing Day and at carnivals, 

and helping set up and clean up the beach at 

these events. Over the past season the Club’s 

Nipper activities, (incidentally supervised by 

Dianna McKellar and Tarena Murray, the 

daughters of two Bobbas) needed help at the 

Nipper sessions in January 2021. People were 

required to organize a BBQ in order to feed the 

water safety members who assisted on the 

beach when Nipper sessions were being held. 

Organized by Andrew Welsh, Bobbas were on 

BBQ duties cooking and serving BBQ 

sausages each morning when necessary and 

this was much appreciated by the water safety 

team. 

 

Sadly, we lost a Bobba, Eugen Mori, just 

recently. Eugen, a talented Mornington 

Peninsula chef, joined the Club in 1962 and 

was very much involved in beach and 

competitive activities back then. In more recent 

years he was always available to help at Club 

functions with his skills in the clubhouse 

kitchen. 

 

The Bobbas are planning for ‘a return to 

normal’ over the next twelve months, with our 

luncheons in particular, and looking forward to 

helping the Club whenever needed at Point 

Leo. In particular, the Bobbas hope the Club 

can return to normality on the beach at Point 

Leo and at Surf Lifesaving carnivals around 

Australia. 

JOHN HORWOOD 

Bobbas Convenor 

Future Project 

Many of us will not have had much of a chance 

to visit the Point Leo Surf Lifesaving 

Clubhouse over the past 12 months. Forget 

about international travel, some of us couldn’t 

even go to the beach! While we have suffered 

a fair bit of lockdown, the Future Project Sub-

committee has not been asleep. 

 

Members will recall the substantial 

redevelopment concept plans that were first 

presented at the 2017 AGM. These exciting 

plans envisaged a staged process that would 

see the renovation and extension of the Point 

Leo clubhouse with a view to providing a safe, 

effective and enjoyable place to serve the 

Club’s growth and emerging needs, and those 

of our community. 

 

With the generous support of the State 

Government, Lifesaving Victoria, and the 

Balnarring and District Community Bank 

Branch of the Bendigo Bank, and several kind 

donations from amongst the membership, in 

2018 we undertook Stage 1 of the works: a 

major refit of the toilets, change rooms and 

downstairs kitchen. 

 

Since then, the club has been thankful to have 

funding support from the Mornington Peninsula 

Shire Council for the preparation of a master 

plan (by Cox Architects) and has been 

successful in gaining some critical grants 

including from the Federal Government and 

Lifesaving Victoria for the Stage 2 works. This 

funding will allow us to tackle a major issue: 

removing the shipping containers that we 

currently use for storing competition and 

lifesaving gear and building an attractive and 

environmentally sympathetic storage space.  
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Stage 2 will also deliver better access on the 

east side of the facility providing direct access 

from the carpark to the changerooms and new 

storage space, as well as to new external  

showers, communal and barbeque areas. 

Plans are currently being discussed with 

relevant agencies (including Mornington 

Peninsula Shire Council and in the near future 

the Department of Environment, Land, Water 

and Planning), but we are optimistic of in-

principle approval. We can then share plans 

and move to detailed design. 

 

In early April 2021 we started an expression of 

interest process seeking a commercial builder 

who could work with us on this project – and 

we hope to have a builder on board for the 

Stage 2 works later in 2021. While our focus is 

on finalising Stage 2 and delivering it, we also 

have an eye to Stage 3 and beyond. The 

Future Facility plan provides an exciting 

master concept. We will be simultaneously 

testing and validating the concept plan, 

drawing on the experience of several other 

lifesaving facility redevelopments around the 

coast. We are looking forward to moving 

ahead on this with the support of the 

committee and our members – to ensure that 

our Clubhouse facilities keep up with our 

needs! 

Luke Treadwell 

Chair, Future Project Sub-committee 
 

Sponsors 

Vantage Fuels / Bowser Bean 

Mornington Prime Cuts 

Balnarring and District Community Bank Branch of Bendigo Bank 

BlueScope Westernport 

Supporters and Donors 

Andrew Cromb 

Andrew Ford 

Angus Melbourne 

Anthony Williams 

Beyond Insurance Group 

Bluegum  

Brooks Family 

Edward Kidd 

Jan Williams 

John Gallagher 

Jon and Michelle Ford 

Kenneth Drake 

Louise Tierney 

Mark McDermott 

Millar Merrigan Land Development 

Consultants 

Multisport Australia and Sport Splits Group 

Sayonarra Pty Ltd 

Tamara Brawn 

 

Gary Tierney Foundation Donors 

Louise Tierney Alan Warby David Gibb John Scambler 
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Recognition & Statistics 

 

President’s Awards 
 

 

Dick Catterick Award – (Best Club Member) – Andrew Welsh 
This award recognises a member who has made an outstanding all-round contribution during the 

season. Presented in memory of the late Dick Catterick who was the Clubhouse caretaker/supervisor 

in the 1970s and 1980s. 

 

Andrew Welsh’s dedication to Point Leo SLSC is exemplary and demonstrated by the time and 

energy he devotes to our club. Andrew Welsh’s committee role as Gear Steward includes planning 

and allocating the shed “space”, managing the maintenance and storage of club equipment as well as 

ensuring that the club and gear is ready to support our operations and programs. Andrew can always 

be found quietly working away on a project in the shed with purpose and with great outcomes. It is a 

crucial role requiring time and patience, and Andrew excels at it! Andrew also contributes to the club 

through meeting his patrol requirements and takes on other roles when required. This was certainly 

evident this season with Andrew agreeing to accept the responsibilities with the Pandemic Team of 

ensuring adherence to COVID-19 restrictions. Andrew spent endless hours assisting with the JSLP in 

setting /packing up and ensuring that equipment was CovidSafe. Andrew is a deeply committed club 

member. He is reliable, dependable, and always willing to assist in any way he can. He remains a 

strong, sensible, and thoughtful sounding board on a host of club issues for many of the Committee. 

Andrew is a highly valued member and so deserved of this award. 

 

President’s Award (Senior) – Adam Lipszyc 
This award recognises a member who has made an outstanding contribution to the Point Leo SLSC 

and has demonstrated leadership in one or more Club and Life Saving Victoria activities, competitive 

performance, fostering of team spirit and personal conduct. 

 

Adam joined Point Leo SLSC as a young nipper in 2001. Since completion of the Junior Program, 

Adam has been involved in several positions and has undertaken the role of Club Captain for the last 

5 years. The Club Captain is responsible for active leadership and operational activities of the club 

and coordinates all functions associated with the provision of lifesaving services. The Club Captain is 

also a member of the Executive Committee as well as the Committee. Adam has excelled in his role 

as Club Captain culminating in this season by continuing operations and delivering a safe beach in 

incredibly challenging COVID-19 circumstances. As Club Captain, he has demonstrated immense 

commitment and strong leadership, mentoring many of the younger Patrol and Vice Patrol captains in 

his team. Adam is approachable, open, inclusive and committed to ensuring that patrols embrace 

these values. Adam instigated the highly successful inaugural Pride Patrol this season demonstrating 

his commitment to inclusion and diversity within our club. Adam is a highly valued member of the 

Executive Committee and has provided insightful, considered, and sensible input into the decision-

making process. On a personal note, he has been incredibly supportive of me in my role as President 

which has been much appreciated. Adam has made an outstanding contribution to Point Leo SLSC 

demonstrating exemplary leadership, cultivating team spirit through his personal conduct. And most 

appreciated is that Adam’s approach is delivered with warmth, humour and a sense of fun. 
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President’s Award (Junior) – Charlotte Hoskins  
This award recognises a Junior member (U15 – U19) who has made an outstanding contribution to the 

Point Leo SLSC and has demonstrated leadership in one or more Club and Life Saving Victoria 

activities, competitive performance, fostering of team spirit and personal conduct and demeanour. 

 

Charlotte joined Point Leo SLSC in our Junior Program as an Under 7 in 2007. Charlotte has been an 

incredible role model for our young members through her commitment to patrolling and contribution to 

our programs. Charlotte patrolled for an outstanding 44.75 hours throughout the season, which is a 

great achievement. Charlotte also contributed to the club though assisting with our JSLP as water 

safety and Activity Leader as well as assisting in the SRC and Bronze camps when required. 

Charlotte also was a highly valued and accomplished facilitator of the School Surf Aware Program. 

Charlotte continues to demonstrate strong, quiet, and self-assured leadership and character in her 

volunteer roles embracing the community spirit of the club. Charlotte is a very worthy recipient of the 

Presidents Junior Award for this season. 

 

Major Award Recipients 

Club Captain’s Award – Michelle Royal-Hebblewhite 
This award recognises a member whose contribution to club operations demonstrably enhances the 

development of lifesaving at the Point Leo SLSC or whose commitment to patrol operations, training 

and education, youth and leadership development or the Junior Lifesaving Program has excelled. 

It takes a special candidate to satisfy all these criteria, yet over a commitment that spans 18 years, 

Michelle Royal-Hebblewhite has done just that. Michelle is one of the club’s most experienced and 

committed trainers. A previous recipient of the LSV Education Instructor of the Year award, Michelle 

has trained an innumerable number of courses over the years and I have been lucky to be the 

recipient of her teaching. In fact, it was Michelle’s passionate and pragmatic approach to training that 

inspired me to complete my trainers and assessors endorsements. Michelle has a way of cutting 

through the onerous paperwork and focusing on the important aspects of the curriculum – I really 

liked her style and I hope she doesn’t mind me running with it. Without dedicated trainers and 

assessors like Michelle, we cannot run Bronze or SRC camps; we cannot run First Aid or Advanced 

Airway Techniques courses. Without these awards there are no patrols; there is no water safety for 

Nippers, competition or events – her impact across the entire club therefore cannot be overstated.  

Michelle’s footprint at the club goes beyond the realm of training. Her patrol record is staggering –she 

has clocked well over 550 patrol hours, however given this only includes electronic records Michelle’s 

hours are likely much higher. She captains the Legends patrol with Andrew Gibson, inspiring others to 

commit to more seasons and importantly re-enlist if they’ve had a lapse. She is a constant presence 

in the First Aid tent at Point Leo events and has bent over backwards to fill in at the last minute 

countless times.  

Perhaps Michelle’s greatest legacy will be her role in the leadership development of our female 

members. An ardent supporter of our up-and-coming female members, Michelle has provided 

informal and formal guidance to a number of rising stars. She has contributed her time and energy to 

the Pink Patrol initiatives, inspiring everyone (myself included) to be better. I am honoured to award 

Michelle the 2020/2021 Club Captain Award – our club, its members and the wider community wholly 

recognise your service and thank you for it. 
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Outstanding Achievement – ‘The Lion’s Den’ Youth Program – Sarah-Jo Mason 

and Sam Hunt 
This award recognises outstanding achievement(s) or contributions in any sector of club activity during 

the current season.  

This year’s winner of the Outstanding Achievement of the Year is the Lion’s Den, a youth program 

that was developed by Sarah-Jo Mason for this season, executed by Sam Hunt and supported by 

BlueScope Westernport. A challenge within surf lifesaving in general, and in our club specifically is 

retention of the Under 15 age group after an immersive period within the structured JSLP. The Lion’s 

Den is an innovative and motivating program developed to engage the Under 15/16 age group. The 

program offers a “space” for this age group so that they feel valued, connected to the club, and 

therefore motivated to continue their lifesaving journey within Point Leo SLSC. The program was 

holistic in nature including social events, water safety, beach, and water activities, First Aid course 

and positive wellness sessions culminating in a well-attended swim camp. The Lion’s Den 

achievement of connecting this age group with their peers and increasing engagement with lifesaving 

and our club was exceptional, particularly so under difficult COVID 19 restrictions. Well done to 

Sarah-Jo Mason for developing this unique program and to Sam Hunt, Vice President Youth 

Development, in leading the program in its inaugural year. Details of this exciting program can be 

read within this Annual Report. 

Patroller of the Year (Geoff Waters Perpetual Trophy) – Edward (Chuck) Warner 
The Patroller of the Year award is presented each year in recognition of excellence and commitment to 

patrolling.  

 

The Senior Patroller of the Year Award recognises a Senior member who is always going that extra 

mile down on the beach. Chuck Warner has been Vice Patrol Captain for the famous Woodchucks 

patrol for some seasons now and has helped grow and strengthen this mighty patrol alongside Nick 

Woods. The ever reliable Chuck is always available to either lend or provide support to others either 

on his patrol, his son’s patrol or just coming down for a chat on any patrol. He has a genuine passion 

for helping others and is a natural mentor to many of our young members. So skilled and 

experienced, always available and always welcoming, it’s no wonder that so many people look up to 

him for wise instruction and good counsel. His dedication and commitment to the Club was 

highlighted again this season as he anchored the Nipper IRB water safety team during a complex 

COVID-19 season, including LSV carnivals. He also spent countless hours training and developing 

the next generation of IRB volunteers and ensuring that our IRBs were always operational. He 

radiates the true spirit of Point Leo through his can do attitude and his inclusive and caring approach 

to all. 

 

Junior Patroller of the Year – Liam Whitehouse 
The Junior Patroller of the Year award is presented to a Junior member (U15 - U19) each year in 

recognition of excellence and commitment to patrolling.  

 

The Junior Patroller of the Year Award recognises an under 19 member who has gone above and 

beyond at patrols. Liam Whitehouse has shown great initiative on and off the beach. He was always 

down on the beach assisting the patrol in every way he could. This season Liam was very eager to 

learn more skills and stepped up into the Vice Patrol Captain position on Romy’s patrol and did an 

amazing job in his first season in the role.  
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Award Recipients 

Dick Catterick Award (Best Club Member) Andrew Welsh 

Point Leo SLSC Senior President's Award Adam Lipszyc 

Point Leo SLSC Junior President's Award Charlotte Hoskins 

Club Captain’s Award Michelle Royal-Hebblewhite 

Outstanding Achievement of the Year 
The Lion’s Den Youth Program – 
Sarah-Jo Mason and Sam Hunt 

Team of the Year 
Open Women’s Taplin Relay Team – 
Isabella Austin, Kate Brooks, Isabella 
Ford 

Vigilance and Service Awards 

Senior Patroller of the Year Edward (Chuck) Warner 

Junior Patroller of the Year Liam Whitehouse 

Patrol Hours Bronze Award 

Bridget Barnes 

Zali Cargill 

Charlie Cassell-Ashton 

Georgia Cassell-Ashton 

Andrew Gibson 

Ella Laussen 

Christopher Oldham 

Edward (Chuck) Warner 

Surf Sports Awards 

Male Athlete of the Year Joshua Doherty 

Female Athlete of the Year Isabella Austin 

Junior Female Athlete of the Year Hannah Cester 

Junior Male Athlete of the Year Tom Lillywhite 

Masters Athlete of the Year Jon Ford 

Team of the Year 

Open Women’s Taplin Relay - Isabella 

Austin (board), Kate Brooks (swim), 

Isabella Ford (ski) 

John Marshall Swim Competitor of the Year Henry (Harry) Atkins 

Board and Ski Competitor of the Year Myles Irwin 

Beach Competitor of the Year Abigail Morgan 

Junior Awards 

Jill McKellar Junior of the Year Fred Handley 

Nipper Parent of the Year Tarena Murray 

Nipper Male Athlete of the Year Fred Handley 

Nipper Female Athlete of the Year Emma May-Konning 

Nipper Competitor Award Aine Curtis 

Nipper Co-ordinator Award - Female Lucy Hunt 

Nipper Co-ordinator Award - Male Alex Northcote 

Water Safety Awards 

Sienna Dawes 

Nicholas Lew 

Cassandra Merrigan 

Isaac Taylor 

Emma Williams 
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2020 LSV Awards of Excellence Winners 

Rhys Cole – LSV - John Wishart Memorial Medal Lifesaver of the Year 

Tamara Brawn – LSV - Official of the Year and SLSA Awards of Excellence Surf Sports Awards, 

Official of the Year 

Matthew Callaghan – Mike Martin Champion Junior Lifesaver 

LSV Development Camps 

Andrew Ellery – U13 

Zoe Watt – U13 

Aine Curtis – U15 

Emma Williams – U15 

Layla Romari – U15 

Mathilda Grant – U15 

Ruby Johnstone – U15 

Sophie Melbourne – U15 

LSV Female Leadership Network 

Michelle Royal-Hebblewhite 

Open Victorian Championships Results 

Abigail Morgan 

Gold U15 Women's Beach Sprint 

Gold Youth Mixed Beach Relay 

Gold Youth Women's Beach Relay 

Andrew Goldstein 
(Pachyderms) 

Bronze Open Surf Boats 

Aine Curtis Gold Youth Women's Beach Relay 

Brett O'Loughin (Pachyderms) Bronze Open Surf Boats 

Caitlin Robinson 

Bronze Open Women's Board Relay 

Bronze Open Women's Rescue Tube Rescue 

Bronze Open Women's Ski Relay 

Dylan Cresswell (Pachyderms) Bronze Open Surf Boats 

Emma May-Konning 
Gold Youth Mixed Beach Relay 

Gold Youth Women's Beach Relay 

Fox Handley Bronze Open Men's Rescue Tube Rescue 

Grace Handley Bronze Open Women's Rescue Tube Rescue 

Graham Barber (Pachyderms) Bronze Open Surf Boats 

Hannah Cester 
Gold Champion Lifesaver 

Gold Youth Women's Beach Relay 

Haydn Tierney Bronze Open Men's Rescue Tube Rescue 

Henry (Harry) Atkins 
Gold Open Men's Board Rescue 

Bronze Open Men's Rescue Tube Rescue 

Henry Laussen Silver Youth Men's Beach Relay 

James Walsh (Pachyderms) Bronze Open Surf Boats 

Josh Doherty 

Gold Open Men's Surf Race 

Gold Open Men's Board Rescue 

Bronze Open Men's Rescue Tube Rescue 

Isaac Taylor 

Gold Youth Mixed Beach Relay 

Silver Youth Men's Beach Relay 

Bronze U15 Men's Beach Sprint 
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Isabella Austin 

Gold Open Women's Taplin Relay 

Gold U19 Women’s Ski Race 

Bronze Open Women's Board Race 

Bronze Open Women's Board Relay 

Bronze Open Women's Double Ski 

Bronze Open Women's Ironwoman 

Bronze Open Women's Ski Race 

Bronze Open Women's Ski Relay 

Bronze U19 Women's Board Race 

Isabella Ford 

Gold Open Women's Taplin Relay 

Silver Open Women's Board Rescue 

Bronze Open Women's Board Relay 

Bronze Open Women's Double Ski 

Bronze Open Women's Rescue Tube Rescue 

Bronze Open Women's Ski Relay 

Kate Brooks 

Gold Open Women's Taplin Relay 

Silver Open Women's Board Rescue 

Bronze Open Women's Rescue Tube Rescue 

Matthew Callaghan Silver Youth Men's Beach Relay 

Thomas McFarlane Gold Open Men's 2k Run 

Tom Lillywhite 

Gold Youth Mixed Beach Relay 

Silver U15 Men's 2k Run 

Silver Youth Men's Beach Relay 

 

Masters Victorian Championships Results 

Allan Latto (Plato's) Silver Men's Reserve Boats 

Amber Skehan 

Gold 130+Women's Board Relay 

Gold 130+ Women's Surf Teams  

Silver Women's 40-44 Board Rescue 

Bronze Women's 40-44 Board Race 

Bronze 130+ Women's Taplin Relay 

Andrew Gibson 

Gold Men’s 65-69 Ironman 

Gold 230+ Men's Beach Relay 

Bronze Men’s 65-69 Beach Sprint 

Bronze Men’s 65-69 Ski Race 

Bronze Men’s 65-69 Surf Race 

Bronze Men’s 65-69 Beach Flags 

Anthony Davis (Plato's) Silver Men's Reserve Boats 

Anthony Williams (Plato's) Silver Men's Reserve Boats 

Andrew Cromb (Plato's) Silver Men's Reserve Boats 

Amy Jones 

Gold Women’s 30-34 Surf Race 

Gold 110+ Women's Surf Teams 

Silver 110+ Women's Taplin Relay 

Andrew Welsh 
Silver Men's 55-59 Beach Flags 

Gold 230+ Men's Beach Relay 

Anton Pound 
Bronze 130+ Men's Taplin Relay 

Bronze 130+ Men's Surf Teams 

Bruce Mourney 
Gold 170+ Men's Surf Teams 

Silver 170+ Men's Ski Relay 
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Catherine Cunningham 

Gold Women's 40-44 Beach Flags 

Silver 110+ Women's Taplin Relay 

Silver 110+ Women's Board Relay 

Silver Women's 35-39 Board Rescue 

Silver 150+ Women's Ski Relay 

Bronze Women's 40-44 Beach Sprint 

Catherine McCraith 

Gold 130+ Women's Surf Teams  

Silver Women's 40-44 Ironwoman 

Silver Women's 40-44 Ski Race 

Gold 110+ Women's Surf Teams 

Silver 110+ Women's Taplin Relay 

Bronze Women's 40-44 Surf Race 

Dana Sawyer 

Gold 130+Women's Board Relay 

Gold 150+Women's Surf Teams 

Gold Women's 50-54 Board Rescue 

Silver Women's 50-54 Surf Race 

Silver 150+ Women's Taplin Relay 

Bronze 170+ Women's Beach Relay 

Darius Alekna Silver 170+ Men's Board Relay 

David Russell 

Gold 170+ Men's Surf Teams 

Gold 170+ Men's Taplin Relay 

Gold Men's 50-59 Board Rescue 

Silver Men's 55-59 Surf Race 

Dianne Summers 

Gold Women’s 50-54 Double Ski 

Silver 150+ Women's Ski Relay 

Bronze Women's 50-54 Board Race 

Bronze 150+ Women's Board Relay 

Bronze 130+ Women's Taplin Relay 

Gabrielle McMeeken 

Gold Women's 50-54 Beach Sprint 

Gold Women’s 50-54 Double Ski 

Silver 150+ Women's Ski Relay 

Silver 150+ Women's Taplin Relay 

Bronze 170+ Women's Beach Relay 

Georgina Hunt 

Gold 150+Women's Surf Teams 

Silver 110+ Women's Board Relay 

Silver Women's 40-44 Board Rescue 

Bronze 130+ Women's Taplin Relay 

Hamish McKenzie Gold 230+ Men's Beach Relay 

Haydn Tierney 

Gold 110+ Men's Board Relay 

Silver Men's 35-39 Ironman 

Silver Men's 35-39 Surf Race 

Bronze Men's 35-39 Board Race 

Bronze 35-39 Men's Board Rescue 

Bronze 110+ Men's Ski Relay 

Bronze 130+ Men's Taplin Relay 

Hugh Condon 
Gold Men's 50-54 Surf Race 

Silver 150+ Men's Surf Teams (A) 
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Jane Starr 

Gold 170+ Women's Board Relay 

Gold 170+ Women's Surf Teams 

Gold Women's 55-59 Board Race 

Gold Women's 55-59 Board Rescue 

Silver Women's 55-59 Surf Race 

Silver 150+ Women's Taplin Relay 

Jon Ford 

Gold Men's 55-59 Ironman 

Gold Men's 55-59 Board Race 

Gold Men's 50-59 Board Rescue 

Gold 170+ Men's Surf Teams 

Gold 170+ Men's Taplin Relay 

Silver Men’s 45-49 Double Ski 

Silver 170+ Men's Board Relay 

Silver 170+ Men's Ski Relay 

Bronze Men's 55-59 Beach Flags 

Kim Aliotti 
Gold 170+ Women's Board Relay 

Gold 170+ Women's Surf Teams 

Luke Skehan 

Gold Men's 45-49 Board Race 

Silver 150+ Men's Surf Teams (A) 

Silver 130+ Men’s Board Relay 

Mark Aliotti 

Gold Men’s 60-64 Surf Race 

Gold 170+ Men's Taplin Relay 

Silver Men’s 60-64 Ironman 

Silver 170+ Men's Board Relay 

Silver 170+ Men's Ski Relay 

Michael Treadwell 
Silver Men's 30-34 2K Run 

Gold 170+ Men's Beach Relay 

Michele Ford 

Gold 130+Women's Board Relay 

Gold 150+Women's Surf Teams 

Gold Women's 50-54 Board Rescue 

Silver Women's 50-54 Board Race 

Nathan Millar 

Gold Men's 35-39 2K Run 

Gold Men's 35-39 Beach Flags 

Gold Men's 35-39 Beach Sprint 

Gold 110+ Men's Board Relay 

Silver 110+ Men's Taplin Relay 

Gold 170+ Men's Beach Relay 

Bronze 35-39 Men's Board Rescue 

Bronze 110+ Men's Ski Relay 

Neville Smith (Plato's) Silver Men's Reserve Boats 

Nicholas Clarke 

Bronze Men's 45-49 Ironman 

Bronze Men's 45-49 Ski Race 

Silver 130+ Men’s Board Relay 

Silver Men’s 45-49 Double Ski 

Paul Doherty 
Silver 150+ Men's Surf Teams (A) 

Bronze 130+ Men's Taplin Relay 

Samuel Hunt Silver 110+ Men's Taplin Relay 

Samuel Johnstone 

Gold 110+ Men's Board Relay 

Silver 110+ Men's Taplin Relay 

Bronze 130+ Men's Surf Teams 

Bronze 110+ Men's Ski Relay 
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Simon Merrigan 

Gold 170+ Men's Beach Relay 

Bronze Men's 50-54 Beach Flags 

Bronze Men's 50-54 Beach Sprint 

Stacey Lethlean 

Gold Women's 55-59 Board Rescue 

Gold 170+ Women's Board Relay 

Gold 170+ Women's Surf Teams 

Steven Northcote 

Gold Men's 45-49 2K Run 

Silver Men's 45-49 Beach Flags 

Gold 170+ Men's Beach Relay 

Bronze Men's 45-49 Beach Sprint 

Sukanya Ellison-Whyte 

Gold 110+ Women's Surf Teams 

Silver Women's 35-39 Beach Flags 

Silver Women's 35-39 Beach Sprint 

Silver Women's 35-39 Board Rescue 

Silver 110+ Women's Board Relay 

Bronze 170+ Women's Beach Relay 

Bronze Women's 35-39 Board Race 

Bronze Women's 35-39 Surf Race 

Tamara Heffernan 
Gold 130+ Women's Surf Teams  

Bronze 150+ Women's Board Relay 

Timothy Farrell 
Silver 130+ Men’s Board Relay 

Bronze 130+ Men's Surf Teams 

Tom Mollenkopf 

Gold 230+ Men's Beach Relay 

Bronze Men's 60-64 Beach Flags 

Bronze Men's 60-64 Beach Sprint 

Vicki Hood 
Bronze 150+ Women's Board Relay 

Bronze 170+ Women's Beach Relay 

 

Junior Club Champions 

Age Group Placings 

Under 14 Boys 

1st – Fred Handley 

2nd – Joe Collingwood 

3rd – Alex Northcote 

Age Manager’s Award – Charlie Allen 

Under 14 Girls 

1st – Lily Douglas 

2nd – Emma Williams 

3rd – Harriet Kogler 

Age Manager’s Award – Emma May-Konning and Fenella Collins 

 

Junior State Title Results 

Max Alekna 

Gold U12 Beach Run 

Gold U12 Board Rescue 

Gold U12 Aqua Cameron Relay 

Silver U12 Surf Team 

Silver U12 Beach Relay 

Hugh Dawes Silver U12 Beach Relay 

Matthew Martyn 
Gold U12 Aqua Cameron Relay 

Silver U12 Beach Relay 

Luca Phillips Silver U12 Beach Relay 
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Oscar Skehan 

Gold U12 Board Race 

Gold U12 Board Rescue 

Gold U12 Surf Race 

Gold U12 Ironman 

Gold U12 Aqua Cameron Relay 

Silver U12 Surf Team 

Freddie Ward Silver U12 Surf Team 

Orlando Clark Bronze U13 Beach Run 

Charlie Farrell 

LSV U13 Champion Athlete – Boys Water Award 2021 

Gold U13 Board Race 

Silver U13 Ironman 

Bronze U13 Surf Race 

Bronze U13 Surf Team 

Gus Johnstone Bronze U13 Surf Team 

Noah Kyriacou Bronze U13 Surf Team 

Archie Ward Bronze U13 Surf Team 

Miranda Aumont Gold U13 Beach Relay 

 Gold U13 Board Relay 

Anouk Clarke Gold U13 Board Race 

 Gold U13 Board Relay 

 Gold U13 Beach Relay 

Grace Lillywhite Gold U13 Board Relay 

Jemima Perry Gold U13 Beach Relay 

Nina Pound Gold U13 Beach Relay 

Miranda Aumont 

Ruth Clancy 

Milla Clark 

Murphy Clark 

Anouk Clark 

Gus Johnstone 

Noah Kyriacou 

Grace Lillywhite 

Liam McGuirk 

Jemima Perry 

Nina Pound 

Zoe Watt 

Bronze U13 March Past 

 

Lifesaving Awards 

Attained in Season 2020/2021

10 Year National Patrol 
Service Award 

Royal-Hebblewhite, Michelle 

25 Year National Patrol 
Service Award 

Gibson, Andrew 

Advanced Resuscitation 
Techniques [AID] 

Cester, Nathan 

 

Age Manager Course 

Alekna, Darius 

Murray, Tarena 

Bronze Medallion 

Arnott-Tan, Anshan 

Bede, Frederick 

Bertalli, Joseph 

Bessell, Emilie 

Bogdan, Olivia 

Calder, Hugh 

Cherny, Dean 

Enders, Miles 

Erez, Sam 

Falcon, Oliver 

Findlay, Campbell 

Gladding, Mark 

Gladding, Samuel 

Handley, Fox 



Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. | ABN 83 471 063 765 | pointleoslsc.com.au  Page | 41  

Hellmann, Mietta 

Laity, Olivia 

Lebeau, Eliott 

Lempriere, Henri 

Lew, Nicholas 

Lionnet, Corey 

MacLaren, Angus 

Mannock, Caroline 

McKinnon, Edward 

Neville-Smith, Richie 

Newnham, Emily 

Nickless, Rachel 

Northcote, Giselle 

O'Connor, Lachlan 

Porter, Virginia 

Redlich, Jamie 

Reith, Thomas 

Renison, Krysha 

Reynolds, Luke 

Rogerson, Grace 

Said, Domenic 

Schultz, Ruby 

Scoffern, Skye 

Singh, Shail 

Stodal, Savannah 

Tabain, Casper 

Tilley, Oscar 

Warner, Zoe 

Watson, Ruby 

Whiter, Chloe 

Wright, Elizabeth 

Certificate II in Public Safety 
(Aquatic Rescue) 

Goldstein, Andrew 

Perry, Simon 

Rogerson, Grace 

Royal-Hebblewhite, Michelle 

Stodal, Savannah 

Facilitator SSV 

McLeod, Darren 

Royal-Hebblewhite, Michelle 

First Aid [AID] 

Barnes, Ingrid 

Callaghan, Matthew 

Clarke, Warren 

Curtis, Bernie 

Davey, Sienna 

Doak, Max 

Edmonds, Finley 

Edmonds, Honor 

Edmonds, Kipling 

Hosking, Ella 

Hyatt, Ruby 

Irwin, Myles 

Lally, Hamish 

Laussen, Henry 

Lew, Nicholas 

Lowden, Tracey 

Macpherson Smith, Charles 

Mannock, Toby 

McGuire, Bonnie 

McKellar, James 

Merrigan, Cassandra 

Newnham, Emily 

Ralton, Archibald 

Talbot, James 

Taylor, Isaac 

Whitehouse, Aaron 

Whitehouse, Liam 

Woods, Sonny 

Gold Medallion (Advanced 
Lifesaving) 

Clark, Madison 

Clarke, Nathaniel 

Laussen, William 

Inclusive Beaches Online 

Mason, Sarah-Jo 

IRB Crew Certificate 

Lillywhite, Charlotte 

Lionnet, Corey 

Morton, James 

Northcote, Giselle 

Talbot, Chloe 

Whitehouse, Liam 

Resuscitation [AID] 

Barnes, Ingrid 

Cester, Nathan 

Clarke, Warren 

Curtis, Bernie 

Edmonds, Finley 

Edmonds, Honor 

Edmonds, Kipling 

Irwin, Myles 

Lew, Nicholas 

Lowden, Tracey 

Mannock, Toby 

McKellar, James 

Newnham, Emily 

Richter, Zachary 

Whitehouse, Aaron 

Safeguarding Children and 
Young People Awareness 

Akkerman, Brad 

Alekna, Darius 

Atkins, Henry 

Barnes, Bridget 

Blythe, Miffany 

Cassell-Ashton, Georgia 

Clarke, Nicholas 

Clarke, Sharyn 

Cole, Rhys 

Ford, Isabella 

Kendrick, Melanie 

Latto, Allan 

McMeeken, Lily 

Murray, Tarena 

Ogilvie, Nicholas 

Robinson, Lachlan 

Romari, Jason 

Snow, Gillian 

Warner, Sam 

Welsh, Andrew 

Whitehouse, Liam 

Wynn-Pope, Hamish 

Safer Surf Clubs Online Part 1 

Cole, Rhys 

Mason, Sarah-Jo 

Silver Medallion Beach 
Management 

Clark, Madison 

Clarke, Nathaniel 

Laussen, William 

Mannock, Toby 

Silver Medallion IRB Driver 

Austin, Cameron 

Clarke, Nathaniel 

Langdon, Freddie 

Laussen, William 

Morgenthaler, Ky 

SS - ASADA level 1 Anti 
doping  

Davis, Anthony 

Ford, Jon 

SS - ASADA Level 2 Anti 
Doping 

Ford, Jon 

SS - ASC Officiating General 
Principles  

Davis, Anthony 

SS - Development Coach 
Lifesaving (Online Modules) 

McMeeken, Lily 

SS - Development Coach 
Online Theory Modules 

Davis, Anthony 

SS - Development Coach Surf 
Boat 

Davis, Anthony 

SS - Foundation Coach Online 
Theory Modules 

McMeeken, Lily 
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SS - Performance Coach 
Online Theory Modules  

Ford, Jon 

SS - S2 & S3 Boat Sweep 
Accreditation 

Davis, Anthony 

SS - Technical Official  

Cester, Nathan 

SSV Operator 

McLeod, Darren 

Royal-Hebblewhite, Michelle 

Supplementary Learning for 
Patrol Captains - Online 
Session 

Richardson, Samuel 

Training Officer Bronze 
Medallion 

Cargill, Zali 

Laussen, Ella 

Training Officer Surf Rescue 

Cargill, Zali 

Laussen, Ella 

 

Nipper Award Statistics 

Award Total 

Junior Activities Competition Skills Evaluation Under 9 40 

Junior Activities Competition Skills Evaluation Under 10 23 

Junior Activities Competition Skills Evaluation Under 11 32 

Junior Activities Competition Skills Evaluation Under 12 32 

Junior Activities Competition Skills Evaluation Under 13 46 

Junior Activities Competition Skills Evaluation Under 14 47 

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation Under 7 - Restricted 15 

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation Under 8 47 

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation Under 9 56 

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation Under 10 40 

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation Under 11 55 

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation Under 12 48 

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation Under 13 46 

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation Under 14 48 

Surf Aware One 56 

Surf Aware Two 59 

Surf Play Two 37 

Surf Safe One 40 

Surf Safe Two 54 

Surf Smart One 49 

Surf Smart Two 46 

 

Volunteer Hours 

Name 
Patrol 
Hours 

Water 
Safety 
Hours 

Total 
Hours 

Alekna, Darius 23.5 37.5 61 

Alekna, Nicola 20 3 23 

Alekna, Zoe 3.75 16.5 20.25 

Aliotti, Kim 10 0 10 

Aliotti, Marc 9 0 9 

Allan, Charlie 11 0 11 

Allsopp, Abby 0 0 0 

Appleton, Bryce 24 2 26 

Appleton, Charlie 18.5 3.5 22 

Arnott-Tan, Antuan 0 0 0 

Ashby, Charlotte 24 4 28 

Ashby, Jessica 24.5 2 26.5 

Name 
Patrol 
Hours 

Water 
Safety 
Hours 

Total 
Hours 

Atkins, Henry 30 4 34 

Aumont, Declan 0 0 0 

Austin, Cameron 3 3 6 

Austin, David 4 0 4 

Austin, Isabella 17 12.5 29.5 

Ball, Jack 2.5 4 6.5 

Ball, Samuel 0 0 0 

Barber, Grahame 17 0 17 

Barnes, Bridget 56.25 13 69.25 

Barnes, Ingrid 4 0 4 

Bede, Frederick 0 7 7 

Beever, Katharine 19 3 22 
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Name 
Patrol 
Hours 

Water 
Safety 
Hours 

Total 
Hours 

Bennett, Anouk 5 9 14 

Bennett, Hugo 0 0 0 

Bertalli, Arabella 5.5 7 12.5 

Bertalli, Joseph 0 3 3 

Bessell, Emilie 4 5 9 

Bird de la Coeur, 
Emile 

0 0 0 

Bogdan, Nicholas 13 18.5 31.5 

Bogdan, Olivia 0 8 8 

Bonfield, Thalia 0 0 0 

Brancatisano, Hugo 0 6 6 

Brockhurst, Jack 0 0 0 

Brockhurst, Lachlan 0 0 0 

Brooks, Kate 33.5 14.5 48 

Cahill, Lily 0 16 16 

Calder, Hugh 0 0 0 

Callaghan, Andrew 0 0 0 

Callaghan, Matthew 8 17 25 

Campbell, Lucy 0 0 0 

Cargill, Travis 22 2 24 

Cargill, Zali 59 3 62 

Cargill, Zane 0 0 0 

Carne, Isabelle 0 10 10 

Cassell-Ashton, Charli 57 11 68 

Cassell-Ashton, 
Georgia 

52.5 1 53.5 

Cassell-Ashton, Kate 25.75 0 25.75 

Cester, Hannah 11 5 16 

Cester, Jack 6 0 6 

Cester, Nathan 6 0 6 

Clark, Kylie 10 1 11 

Clark, Madison 5.5 20.5 26 

Clarke, Nathaniel 20 7.5 27.5 

Clarke, Nicholas 4.5 63.5 68 

Cole, Rhys 164.25 0 164.25 

Collingwood, Heidi 0 1 1 

Collingwood, Joe 4 3 7 

Collins, Fenella 7 4.5 11.5 

Condon, Hugh 10 0 10 

Corriero, Angela 0 8.5 8.5 

Crescia, Charlize 0 1 1 

Cullen, Bronte 0 1 1 

Cunningham, 
Catherine 

21.5 0 21.5 

Cunningham, Olivia 0 0 0 

Curtis, Aine 11 8.5 19.5 

Curtis, Bernie 12.16 0 12.16 

Davey, Emily 10.75 8 18.75 

Davey, Sienna 9.25 13 22.25 

Davey, Tom 8 5 13 

Davey, Wendy 11 1 12 

Name 
Patrol 
Hours 

Water 
Safety 
Hours 

Total 
Hours 

Dawes, Kate 0 1 1 

Dawes, Lilly 4 3 7 

Dawes, Sienna 6 23 29 

Doak, Max 33.75 5 38.75 

Doherty, Ellie 17 0 17 

Doherty, Jesse 0 0 0 

Doherty, Joshua 24.5 0 24.5 

Doherty, Paul 36.5 0 36.5 

Donnelly, Jean-
Baptiste 

17 0 17 

Douglas, Lily 0 12 12 

Drake, Helena 5 9 14 

Edmonds, Finley 8 5.5 13.5 

Edmonds, Honor 0 3 3 

Edmonds, Kipling 8 4 12 

Egan, Alexandra 0 0 0 

Ellison-Whyte, 
Sukanya 

16 0 16 

Enders, Miles 0 0 0 

Erez, Sam 0 3 3 

Falcon, Oliver 0 0 0 

Farrell, Timothy  22 22 

Feehan, David 18.5 2 20.5 

Findlay, Campbell 0 5 5 

Findlay, Edward 0 0 0 

Findlay, Maxwell 0 8 8 

Ford, Evelyn 0 0 0 

Ford, Harvey 0 1 1 

Ford, Isabella 19 0 19 

Ford, Jon 14.5 3 17.5 

Ford, Michele 21 0 21 

Ford, Nicholas 13 0 13 

French, Matthew 16 3 19 

Gallagher, John 14.5 0 14.5 

Gallagher, Mia 0 0 0 

Gibson, Andrew 62.5 0 62.5 

Gladding, Mark 3 0 3 

Gladding, Samuel 3 0 3 

Gluskie, Isabella 16 0 16 

Goldstein, Andrew 42.25 0 42.25 

Grant, Mathilda 0 7 7 

Graves, Matthew 11.5 0 11.5 

Gray, Caleb 13.25 0 13.25 

Handley, Fox 16 0 16 

Handley, Fred 10 15 25 

Handley, Grace 0 10 10 

Heffernan, Lucas 15.5 5 20.5 

Heffernan, Tamara 27.5 12 39.5 

Hellmann, Mietta 0 10 10 

Henderson, Charlotte 0 0 0 

Hershan, Dylan 0 0 0 



Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. | ABN 83 471 063 765 | pointleoslsc.com.au  Page | 44  

Name 
Patrol 
Hours 

Water 
Safety 
Hours 

Total 
Hours 

Hershan, Lachlan 0 0 0 

Hicks, Charles 7 6 13 

Hood, Vicki 24.16 0 24.16 

Hosking, Ella 0 14 14 

Hosking, Hugh 0 0 0 

Hosking, William 0 0 0 

Hoskins, Ben 23.5 10 33.5 

Hoskins, Charlotte 44.75 19 63.75 

Hoskins, Oscar 14.75 6 20.75 

Hoskins, Richard 0 0 0 

Hough, Patrick 5 0 5 

Howell, Kate 0 0 0 

Hunt, Georgina 4 12.5 16.5 

Hunt, John 0 8 8 

Hunt, Lucy 5.25 20 25.25 

Hunt, Matilda 0 16 16 

Hunt, Samuel  18.5 18.5 

Hurley, Jack 2.5 3 5.5 

Hyatt, Ruby 2 21 23 

Irwin, Myles 32 0 32 

Jamieson, Cate 0 0 0 

Jeanes, John Michael 0 4 4 

Jenkins, Elizabeth 0 0 0 

Jenkins, Rose 0 0 0 

Johnstone, Ruby 0 7 7 

Johnstone, Samuel  16 16 

Jones, Amy 34.5 0 34.5 

Jones, Morgan 0 0 0 

Kogler, Amelia 0 0 0 

Kogler, Daniel 0 26 26 

Kogler, Harriet 0 21 21 

Kyriacou, Adam 0 44.5 44.5 

Laity, Olivia 0 0 0 

Lally, Hamish 0 19 19 

Langdon, Charlie 0 2 2 

Langdon, Freddie 2.5 2 4.5 

Larobina, Nicholas 6 9 15 

Larobina, Olivia 7.5 5 12.5 

Laughton, Abbey 0 2 2 

Laussen, Ella 63 2 65 

Laussen, Henry 16 16 32 

Laussen, William 19.5 10 29.5 

Leach, Fiona 15 0 15 

Lebeau, Eliott 5 12 17 

Leeton Watts, 
Charlotte 

0 0 0 

Leeton Watts, George 2.75 1 3.75 

Lempriere, Henri 0 2 2 

Lethlean, Stacey 25.5 0 25.5 

Lew, Jonathan 0 14 14 

Name 
Patrol 
Hours 

Water 
Safety 
Hours 

Total 
Hours 

Lew, Nicholas 0 21.5 21.5 

Lillywhite, Charlotte 0 3 3 

Lillywhite, Tom 6 10 16 

Lionnet, Corey 25 9 34 

Lipszyc, Adam 28 0 28 

Lipszyc, Romy 43 0 43 

Lockhart-Meaney, 
Cassidy 

6 0 6 

Low, Sarah 3 0 3 

Lowden, Cooper 36 0 36 

Macaulay, Alexandra 0 0 0 

Macaulay, Charlotte 37.08 13 50.08 

MacGowan, Max 2.67 5.5 8.17 

MacLaren, Angus 0 0 0 

Macpherson Smith, 
Charles 

5 12 17 

Mair, India 5 11 16 

Mair, Riley 5 14 19 

Mannock, Toby 5 9 14 

Marshall, Bryon 16 0 16 

Marshall, Kieran 17 7 24 

May-Konning, Emma 11 8.5 19.5 

McCraith, Catherine 13 13.5 26.5 

McDonald, Clayton 3 0 3 

McFarlane, Thomas 17 0 17 

McGirr, George 0 8 8 

McGuire, Bonnie 25 8 33 

McGuirk, Brett 0 3 3 

McKellar, James 0 0 0 

McKenzie, Alasdair 30 0 30 

McKenzie, Euan 6.5 3 9.5 

McKenzie, Hamish 16 0 16 

McKinnon, Edward 0 10 10 

McLeish, Skye 8 4 12 

McMeeken, Gabrielle 25.5 0 25.5 

McMeeken, Lily 14.5 0 14.5 

McMillan, Keeley 0 8.5 8.5 

Melbourne, Amelie 0 0 0 

Melbourne, Angus 0 5 5 

Melbourne, Sophie 0 7 7 

Meredith-Smith, Sarah 0 5 5 

Merrigan, Cassandra 0 25 25 

Merrigan, Simon 5.5 0 5.5 

Meysztowicz, Matty 7 0 7 

Meysztowicz, Ted 0 8 8 

Mezger, Harry 0 0 0 

Middendorp, Holly 0 13.5 13.5 

Middendorp, Marcus 0 0 0 

Millar, Nathan 40.5 0 40.5 

Mollenkopf, Thomas 40 0 40 

Morgan, Abigail 4 7 11 
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Name 
Patrol 
Hours 

Water 
Safety 
Hours 

Total 
Hours 

Morgenthaler, Brittany 13 0 13 

Morgenthaler, Ky 29 0 29 

Morrissy, Lucinda 0 0 0 

Morton, Amelia 0 13 13 

Morton, James 2.5 4 6.5 

Morton, Matthew 0 0 0 

Mourney, Bruce 18 0 18 

Murray, Scott 0 9 9 

Murray, Tarena 0 3 3 

Neville-Smith, Richie 0 0 0 

Newnham, Emily 5 10 15 

Newnham, Jessica 0 0 0 

Nikakis, Chloe 0 0 0 

Northcote, Alexander 10.5 4 14.5 

Northcote, Giselle 25 3 28 

Northcote, Steven 35 5 40 

Nott, Andrew 38 0 38 

O'Connor, Lachlan 0 0 0 

Ogilvie, Connor 0 0 0 

Ogilvie, Milla 0 1.5 1.5 

O'Hara, Andrew 27 0 27 

Oldham, Christopher 57.5 33 90.5 

O'Loughlin, Brett 43 0 43 

Page, Emilie 0 0 0 

Page, Niamh 0 0 0 

Paton, James 33 0 33 

Paynter, Zara 13.5 2.5 16 

Perry, Simon 82.5 0 82.5 

Perry, Zara 4 17 21 

Phillips, Justin 0 7 7 

Poore, Tia 0 0 0 

Pound, Anton 8 1 9 

Price, Finn 0 3 3 

Puleio, Antonio 0 0 0 

Puleio, Lucia 8 3 11 

Pullar, Dean 0 10 10 

Pullar, Oliver 0 12 12 

Ralton, Archibald 5 13 18 

Redlich, Edward 14 9 23 

Redlich, Jamie 0 5 5 

Redlich, Rory 0 0 0 

Reid, Lachie 0 0 0 

Reith, Charles 0 0 0 

Reith, Thomas 0 0 0 

Reynolds, Ben 0 0 0 

Reynolds, Luke 0 0 0 

Richardson, Jacob 0 0 0 

Richardson, Jessica 0 0 0 

Richardson, Nicholas 30.5 2 32.5 

Richardson, Samuel 26.58 0 26.58 

Name 
Patrol 
Hours 

Water 
Safety 
Hours 

Total 
Hours 

Richter, Zachary 22.5 1 23.5 

Robinson, Caitlin 12 4 16 

Robinson, Lachlan 2 0 2 

Rogerson, Grace 0 0 0 

Romari, Jason 13 15 28 

Romari, Jasper 27 6 33 

Romari, Layla 12 20 32 

Rose, Geoff 0 17 17 

Rose, Thomas 0 14.5 14.5 

Royal-Hebblewhite, 
Michelle 

37.5 0 37.5 

Russell, David 13 0 13 

Russell, Kaitlin 8 0 8 

Russell, Mietta 0 0 0 

Said, Domenic 6 8 14 

Sawyer, Dana 22 0 22 

Schultz, Ruby 4 2 6 

Scoffern, Damon 9 0 9 

Scoffern, Skye 0 0 0 

Scoffern, Tulle 0 0 0 

Scott, Hannah 12 0 12 

Singh, Daniel 0 3 3 

Singh, Stephanie 5 11 16 

Skehan, Amber 8 40 48 

Skehan, Luke 8 52.5 60.5 

Smith, Neville 4 0 4 

Starr, Jane 16 0 16 

Stodal, Savannah 9 0 9 

Sullivan, Harry 0 0 0 

Summers, Dianne 11 1.5 12.5 

Swaney, Edward 8 0 8 

Swaney, Ella 20.25 0 20.25 

Swaney, Lachlan 0 0 0 

Tabain, Casper 5 5 10 

Tabain, Gabriella 0 0 0 

Talbot, Chloe 7 0 7 

Talbot, James 24 10 34 

Taylor, Isaac 5 23 28 

Tilley, Oscar 0 0 0 

Treadwell, Luke 16.5 0 16.5 

Treadwell, Michael 44 0 44 

Turnbull, Jake 6.5 6 12.5 

Turnbull, Lucia 3 3.5 6.5 

Twentyman, Charlotte 6.25 0 6.25 

Unsworth, Matilda 0 9 9 

Vandenboom, Lucy 0 0 0 

Walsh, James 9 0 9 

Ward, Marcus 0 23.5 23.5 

Warner, Bella 21.5 3.5 25 

Warner, Edward 67.5 33 100.5 
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Name 
Patrol 
Hours 

Water 
Safety 
Hours 

Total 
Hours 

Warner, Sam 34 0 34 

Warner, Zoe 23 3 26 

Waters, Brett 0 19 19 

Watson, Nick 0 0 0 

Watson, Ruby 0 0 0 

Watt, Chris 0 26.5 26.5 

Welsh, Andrew 19 0 19 

Westaway, Charlotte 6 4 10 

Westaway, Michael 0 2 2 

Whitehouse, Aaron 17.5 19.5 37 

Whitehouse, Liam 32 3.5 35.5 

Whiteoak, Christine 0 1 1 

Name 
Patrol 
Hours 

Water 
Safety 
Hours 

Total 
Hours 

Whiteoak, Nicholas 0 7 7 

Whiter, Chloe 4 3 7 

Wilkins, Danielle 0 0 0 

Williams, Anthony 0 3.5 3.5 

Williams, Emma 0 22 22 

Williams, Lewis 0 11 11 

Williams, Riley 7 7 14 

Woods, Bodhi 12.5 0 12.5 

Woods, Marley 0 0 0 

Woods, Nicholas 38.5 0 38.5 

Woods, Sonny 21.5 10 31.5 

Wynn-Pope, Hamish 0 1 1 

Membership Statistics 

Category Female Male All 

Junior Activity Member (5-13 years) 209 194 403 

Cadet (13-15 years) 40 45 85 

Active (15-18 yrs) 26 36 62 

Active (18yrs and over) 84 126 210 

Reserve Active 0 5 5 

Long Service 3 10 13 

Associate 228 156 384 

Life Member 4 33 37 

General 11 15 26 

Total 605 620 1225 

 

List of members 
Life Member *Deceased 

Aliotti, Marc 

Barnes, Andrew 

Batchelor, Richard 

Braithwaite, Peter 

Brawn, Tamara-Leigh 

Cahill, Murray 

Caraher, Michael 

Ellis, Richard 

Ellis (SNR), Richard 

Ewert, Geoffrey 

Ford, Peter 

Gibson, Andrew 

Gibson, Peter 

Horwood, Brian 

Horwood, John 

James, Geoffrey 

Jeffrey, Maxwell 

Kidd, Edward 

Knight, Ian 

McDonald, Clayton 

McKellar, Garry 

Mollenkopf, Thomas 

Morgenthaler, Stephen 

Munro, Simone 

Murray, Ronald 

Paton, Blane 

Randall, Gary 

Roberts, Donald 

Rydberg, Garry 

Silver, John 

Tierney, Louise 

Treadwell, Alfred 

Treadwell, Luke 

Treadwell, Michael 

Whillans, Peter 

Williams, Kim 

Woodhouse, Robert 

Buxton, Alastair* 

Forster, Alan* 

Forsyth, Alister* 

Kinsey, Geoff* 

McKellar, Jill* 

Taylor, Peter* 

Tierney, Gary* 

Tierney, Graham* 

Waters, Geoffrey* 

Williams, John* 

Long Service 

Cresswell, Dylan 

Cromb, Andrew 

Davis, Anthony 

Gooding, Khali 

Johnstone, Natalie 

Latto, Allan 

Laurence, Dayna 

McDermott, Mark 

Richter, Zachary 

Russell, David 

Tierney, Haydn 

Tierney, Mark 

Williams, Anthony 

Reserve Active 

Bunting-Frame, Matthew 

Christian, Frank 

Condon, Hugh 

Foley, Andrew 

Rydberg, Hayden 

Cadet Member (13-15 years) 

Arnott-Tan, Antuan 

Ashby, Charlotte 

Bede, Frederick 

Bennett, Anouk 

Bertalli, Joseph 

Bessell, Emilie 

Bogdan, Olivia 

Bonfield, Thalia 

Brancatisano, Hugo 

Brockhurst, Jack 

Cahill, Lily 

Calder, Hugh 

Callaghan, Matthew 

Cester, Hannah 

Clark, Mackenzie 

Clark, Robert 

Davey, Sienna 

Dawes, Sienna 

Doak, Max 

Drake, Helena 

Enders, Miles 

Erez, Sam 

Falcon, Oliver 
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Findlay, Campbell 

Gallagher, Mia 

Grant, Mathilda 

Harper, Louisa 

Hellmann, Mietta 

Henderson, Charlotte 

Hershan, Lachlan 

Hosking, Ella 

Hosking, William 

Hulyer, Benjamin 

Hunt, Matilda 

Hyatt, Ruby 

Johnstone, Ruby 

Laity, Olivia 

Lally, Hamish 

Langdon, Charlie 

Laussen, Henry 

Lebeau, Eliott 

Lempriere, Henri 

Lillywhite, Tom 

Lionnet, Corey 

Macaulay, Charlotte 

MacLaren, Angus 

Macpherson Smith, Charles 

Mair, India 

Mair, Riley 

Marshall, Kieran 

McGuire, Bonnie 

McKinnon, Edward 

Melbourne, Sophie 

Merrigan, Cassandra 

Meysztowicz, Ted 

Middendorp, Marcus 

Morgan, Abigail 

Morton, Amelia 

Neville-Smith, Richie 

Newnham, Emily 

Northcote, Giselle 

O'Connor, Lachlan 

Poore, Tia 

Price, Finn 

Pullar, Oliver 

Ralton, Archibald 

Redlich, Jamie 

Reith, Thomas 

Reynolds, Luke 

Said, Domenic 

Schultz, Ruby 

Scoffern, Skye 

Singh, Stephanie 

Tabain, Casper 

Talbot, James 

Taylor, Isaac 

Tilley, Oscar 

Vandenboom, Lucy 

Warner, Zoe 

Watson, Ruby 

Westaway, Charlotte 

Whiteoak, Nicholas 

Whiter, Chloe 

Williams, Lewis 

Woods, Sonny 

Active (15-18 yrs) 

Arnott-Tan, Anshan 

Aumont, Declan 

Austin, Cameron 

Ball, Jack 

Bennett, Hugo 

Brockhurst, Lachlan 

Callaghan, Andrew 

Campbell, Lucy 

Clark, Madison 

Clark, Stephanie 

Clarke, Nathaniel 

Collingwood, Heidi 

Cullen, Bronte 

Cunningham, Olivia 

Davey, Tom 

Dawes, Lilly 

Donnelly, Jean-Baptiste 

Edmonds, Kipling 

Egan, Alexandra 

Findlay, Edward 

Ford, Harvey 

Gladding, Samuel 

Handley, Fox 

Handley, Grace 

Harper, Jack 

Hershan, Dylan 

Hipwell, Bridie 

Hoskins, Oscar 

Hurley, Jack 

Jenkins, Rose 

Kogler, Amelia 

Langdon, Freddie 

Larobina, Olivia 

Laussen, William 

Leeton Watts, George 

Lew, Jonathan 

Lew, Nicholas 

Lillywhite, Charlotte 

McKellar, James 

McKenzie, Euan 

McLeish, Skye 

Morrissy, Lucinda 

Morton, James 

Nikakis, Chloe 

Ogilvie, Connor 

Page, Niamh 

Puleio, Francesca 

Puleio, Lucia 

Rechner Thomas, Max 

Redlich, Rory 

Reith, Charles 

Reynolds, Ben 

Richardson, Jessica 

Rogerson, Grace 

Romari, Jasper 

Scoffern, Tulle 

Stodal, Savannah 

Talbot, Chloe 

Warner, Bella 

Whitehouse, Liam 

Williams, Riley 

Wilson, Jayden 

Active (18yrs and over) 

Alekna, Darius 

Alekna, Nicola 

Aliotti, Kim 

Allsopp, Abby 

Appleton, Bryce 

Atkins, Henry 

Austin, David 

Austin, Isabella 

Ball, Kevin 

Ball, Samuel 

Barber, Grahame 

Barnes, Bridget 

Barnes, Ingrid 

Beever, Katharine 

Bird de la Coeur, Emile 

Brooks, Kate 

Brown, Mitchell 

Burness, Kenneth 

Callaghan, Penelope 

Cargill, Travis 

Cargill, Zali 

Cargill, Zane 

Cassell-Ashton, Charli 

Cassell-Ashton, Georgia 

Cassell-Ashton, Kate 

Cester, Jack 

Cester, Nathan 

Cherny, Dean 

Clancy, Elizabeth 

Clark, Andrew 

Clark, Kylie 

Clarke, Nicholas 

Cole, Rhys 

Corriero, Angela 

Cunningham, Catherine 

Curtis, Bernie 

Dally, Angela 

Davey, Emily 

Davey, Wendy 

Dawes, Kate 

Doherty, Ellie 

Doherty, Jesse 

Doherty, Joshua 

Doherty, Paul 

Edmonds, Campbell 

Edmonds, Finley 

Ellison-Whyte, Sukanya 

Farrell, Timothy 

Feehan, David 

Ford, Andrew 

Ford, Isabella 

Ford, Jon 

Ford, Michele 

Ford, Nicholas 

Francis, Adam 

Francis, Sebastian 

Gallagher, John 

Garner, Jack 

Gearing, David 

Gearing, Peter 

Gearing, Sarah 

Gladding, Mark 

Gluskie, Isabella 

Goldstein, Andrew 

Graves, Matthew 

Gray, Caleb 

Heffernan, Tamara 

Hipwell, Connor 

Hipwell, Darby 

Hood, Vicki 

Hosking, Rachel 

Hoskins, Ben 

Hoskins, Charlotte 

Hoskins, Richard 

Hough, Patrick 

Howell, Kate 

Hunt, Georgina 

Hunt, John 

Hunt, Samuel 

Irwin, Myles 

Jamieson, Cate 

Jeanes, John Michael 

Jenkins, Elizabeth 

Johnson, Kailani 

Johnstone, Samuel 

Jones, Amy 

Jones, Morgan 

King, Susan 

Kogler, Daniel 

Kyriacou, Adam 

Laussen, Ella 

Laussen, Stephen 

Leach, Fiona 

Lethlean, Abby 

Lethlean, Mark 

Lethlean, Stacey 

Lipszyc, Adam 

Lipszyc, Romy 

Lockhart-Meaney, Cassidy 

Low, Sarah 

Lowden, Tracey 

Macaulay, Alexandra 

Macgowan, Melissa 

Macpherson Smith, Georgia 

Macpherson Smith, Lachlan 

Mannock, Caroline 

Mannock, Toby 

Marcus, Malcolm 

Marshall, Bryon 

McCraith, Catherine 

McFarlane, Thomas 

McGuire, Stephen 

McGuirk, Brett 

McKenzie, Alasdair 

McKenzie, Hamish 

McLellan, Mikey 

McLeod, Darren 

McMeeken, Gabrielle 

McMeeken, Lily 

Melbourne, Amelie 

Melbourne, Angus 

Mengler, Troy 
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Merrigan, Simon 

Mezger, Harry 

Mezger, Max 

Mezger, Simon 

Millar, Nathan 

Mitchell, William 

Morgenthaler, Brittany 

Morgenthaler, Ky 

Morrissy, Kym 

Morton, Joseph 

Morton, Matthew 

Mourney, Bruce 

Murray, Scott 

Murray, Tarena 

Nickless, Rachel 

Northcote, Steven 

Nott, Andrew 

O'Connor, Tim 

O'Hara, Andrew 

Oldham, Christopher 

O'Loughlin, Brett 

Page, Emilie 

Page, Patrick 

Pascoe, Damon 

Paton, James 

Pearse, Lachlan 

Perry, Simon 

Phillips, Justin 

Porter, Virginia 

Pound, Anton 

Puleio, Antonio 

Pullar, Dean 

Richardson, Jacob 

Richardson, Nicholas 

Richardson, Samuel 

Robinson, Caitlin 

Robinson, Lachlan 

Romari, Jason 

Rose, Geoff 

Royal-Hebblewhite, Michelle 

Rush, Joanne 

Russell, Jemima 

Russell, Kaitlin 

Russell, Mietta 

Sawyer, Dana 

Scoffern, Damon 

Scott, Hannah 

Singh, Shail 

Skehan, Amber 

Skehan, Luke 

Smith, Neville 

Starr, Heidi 

Starr, Jane 

Strauss, Christian 

Sullivan, Harry 

Summers, Dianne 

Swaney, Edward 

Swaney, Ella 

Swaney, Lachlan 

Tabain, Gabriella 

Thomas, Anthony 

Tulloch, Jody 

Twentyman, Charlotte 

Tyrrell, Justin 

Walley, Benjamin 

Walsh, James 

Ward, Marcus 

Warner, Edward 

Warner, Sam 

Waters, Brett 

Watson, Nick 

Watt, Chris 

Welsh, Andrew 

Welsh, Callum 

Welsh, Lucy 

Welsh, Sophie 

Westaway, Michael 

Whitby, Tiegan 

Whiteoak, Christine 

Wilkins, Danielle 

Woods, Bodhi 

Woods, Nicholas 

Wright, Elizabeth 

Wynn-Pope, Hamish 

Young, David 

Young, Harrison 

Young, James 

Young, William 

Junior Activity (5-13 years) 

Ackland, George 

Ahern, Violet 

Ahern, Willow 

Akkerman, Abby 

Akkerman, Samuel 

Alekna, Max 

Alekna, Zoe 

Allan, Charlie 

Allegos, Sara 

Angelo, Chloe 

Appleton, Charlie 

Arthur, Louis 

Ashby, Jessica 

Aumont, Miranda 

Ayer, Tom 

Bardwell, Sebastian 

Barson Boon, Arielle 

Barson Boon, Sascha 

Bertalli, Arabella 

Bertalli, Scarlett 

Blake, Ella 

Blythe, Arthur 

Blythe, Max 

Blythe, Oscar 

Bogdan, Nicholas 

Bonfield, Leni 

Bonfield, Rafferty 

Bonfield, Sadie 

Boyd-Bell, Angus 

Brancatisano, Rupert 

Brancatisano, Sibella 

Brewer Blake, Flora 

Brown, Edward 

Burton, Cody 

Cahill, Max 

Callaghan, Nicholas 

Carne, Isabelle 

Carne, Mia 

Cassidy, Mary 

Chatfield, Lila 

Chatfield, Saskia 

Cherny, Chloe 

Cherny, Phoebe 

Clancy, Greta 

Clancy, Ruth 

Clark, Milla 

Clark, Murphy 

Clark, Orlando 

Clarke, Anouk 

Cleven, Lainey 

Cleven, Matilda 

Cleven, Tabitha 

Collings, Fraser 

Collings, Oscar 

Collingwood, Joe 

Collins, Alfred 

Collins, Fenella 

Collins, Zachary 

Cooper, Henry 

Cooper, Oscar 

Corriero, Tinashe 

Crescia, Amelie 

Crescia, Charlize 

Crisp, Emily 

Curtis, Aine 

Davis, Iseult 

Davison, Ted 

Davison, Tessa 

Dawes, Hugh 

Day, Matilda 

Day, William 

De Fazio, Charlie 

De Fazio, Harry 

De Fazio, Jack 

De Vere, Luella 

Delaney, Alexandria 

Delaney, Georgia 

Dennis, Agnes 

Devine, Leah 

Devine, Ralph 

Doak, Sam 

Dobinson, Oliver 

Donnelly, Pierre-Eloi 

Dougherty, Stevie 

Douglas, Lily 

Douglas, Ruby 

Duff, Bowen 

Dyer, Lily 

Eagle, Charlie 

Eagle, Harrison 

Edmonds, Honor 

Ellery, Angus 

Elliott, Ava 

Enever, Bonnie 

Enever, Tess 

Farrell, Charlie 

Farrell, Fred 

Feehan, Elizabeth 

Feehan, Isaac 

Fehring, Samuel 

Fehring, Thomas 

Findlay, Maxwell 

Findlay, Thomas 

Finkelstein, Zev 

Foenander, Willow 

Foley, Mietta 

Ford, Evelyn 

Ford, Fraser 

French, Matthew 

Fulton, Esther 

Gasparini, Josh 

Gasparini, Lulu 

Gay, Archie 

Gibson, Beth 

Gladding, Hamish 

Gooding, Angus 

Grant, Claudia 

Gregory, Campbell 

Griffith, Angus 

Griffith, Oscar 

Groves, Jade 

Hampshire, Lilian 

Hampshire, Ned 

Hamzic, Elma 

Handley, Fred 

Hansen, Baas 

Hansen, Sonni 

Hansen, Toby 

Hansen, William 

Harrison, Sam 

Hassett, Hudson 

Heffernan, Lachlan 

Heffernan, Lucas 

Henderson, Grace 

Hershan, Eliza 

Hicks, Charles 

Hicks, Yasmin 

Higgins, Annie 

Higgins, Jeremy 

Higgins, Liam 

Higgins, Matilde 

Higgins, Zoe 

Hitchiner, Ned 

Hogg, Bailee 

Hogg, Jhai 

Holt, Alexander 

Holt, Freddie 

Hopkinson, Maximilian 

Horne, Daniel 

Horne, Edmund 

Hoyle, Mia 

Hughes, William 

Hunt, Clara 

Hunt, Claudia 

Hunt, Frederick 

Hunt, Grace 

Hunt, Lucy 

Hunt, Thomas 

Hunter, Grace 
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Hutton, Jock 

Hutton, Stella 

Hyams, Amelia 

Hyams, Edison 

Hyatt, Alfie 

Hynes, India 

Hynes, Lottie 

Hyslop, Alfie 

Hyslop, Sam 

Jaksa, Campbell 

Jaksa, Monique Simone 

James, Sophia 

Jeanes, Catherine 

Jeanes, Madeleine 

Johnson, Bryce 

Johnson, Darcie 

Johnston, Ariya 

Johnstone, Angus 

Johnstone, Mimi 

Juras, Wally 

Kemp Smith, Anoushka 

Kendrick, Bailey 

Keogh, Hudson 

Kitto, Lewis 

Kleverlaan, Jack 

Kleverlaan, Molly 

Kogler, Claudia 

Kogler, Harriet 

Kogler, Tom 

Kyriacou, Elina 

Kyriacou, Noah 

Kyriacou, Thomas 

Laity, Oscar 

Lally, Max 

Lally, Sam 

Landau, Ezra 

Landau, Reuben 

Langford, Jasper 

Larobina, Louisa 

Larobina, Nicholas 

Laughton, Abbey 

Laughton, Cleo 

Lebeau, Estelle 

Lebeau, Gaston 

Leeton Watts, Charlotte 

Lempriere, Adelaide 

Levi, Xavier 

Levy, Chloe 

Levy, Toby 

Lew, Sophie 

Lillywhite, Grace 

Locke, Austin 

Locke, Ava 

Locke, Fergus 

Lowden, Cooper 

Macaulay, William 

MacGowan, Edith 

MacGowan, Florence 

MacGowan, Louis 

MacGowan, Max 

Mackinnon, Claude 

Mackinnon, Harry 

Maclaren, Leo 

Madder, Eve 

Mallet, Amelie 

Mannock, Cleopatra 

Mannock, Isabel 

Marks, Thomas 

Martyn, Matthew 

Mather, Mitchy 

May-Konning, Emma 

Mcallister, Lucy 

Mcdonald, Eloise 

McGirr, George 

Mcgirr, Lucy 

Mcgirr, Thomas 

McGuire, Rose 

McGuirk, Liam 

McGuirk, Mitchell 

McKellar, Maximus 

McKinnon, Rory 

McKinnon, Sophia 

Mcmanamey, Lachie 

McManamey, Sophie 

McMillan, Keeley 

Mcpherson, Isaac 

McPherson, Maddison 

Meredith-Smith, Eliza 

Meredith-Smith, Sarah 

Merrigan, Violet 

Merrison, Frederick 

Merrison, Phoebe 

Merrison, William 

Meysztowicz, Matty 

Middendorp, Holly 

Miglic, Ada 

Miglic, Max 

Miglic, Zoe 

Milosavljevic, Heidi 

Milosavljevic, Oliver 

Miratana, Lenny 

Mitchell, Betsy 

Mitchell, Rupert 

Morell, Raffi 

Morton, Estelle 

Munro, Harry 

Murray, Allegra 

Murray, Hamish 

Myers, Jackson 

Myers, Mason 

Ness, Vivienne Mae 

Newnham, Jessica 

Norris, Max 

Northcote, Alexander 

Northcote, Jasmine 

Noxon, Poppy 

O'Connor, Alannah 

O'Connor, Fergus 

O'Connor, Isabel 

O'Connor, Liam 

Ogilvie, Milla 

Oldham, Charlotte 

Oldham, Grace 

Oliver, Bill 

Oliver, Edward 

Page, Romy 

Parris, Eden 

Parris, Isla 

Parris, Leo 

Patti, Allegra 

Patti, Evanna 

Paynter, Amelia 

Paynter, Zara 

Penfold, Ned 

Perry, Camilla 

Perry, Jemima 

Perry, Zara 

Phillips, Arki 

Phillips, Luca 

PITT, Alexandra 

Pitt, Edward 

Poore, Chloe 

Pound, Charlotte 

Pound, Nina 

Price, Billy 

Price, Eve 

Price, Pippa 

Pritchard, Hayley 

Puleio, Aurelia 

Pullar, Charlie 

Pullar, Mimi 

Ralton, Hazel 

Ralton, Ike 

Randles, Oliver 

Redlich, Alexander 

Redlich, Edward 

Reid, Lachie 

Reid, Zara 

Renato, Evie 

Renato, Henry 

Reynolds, Kate 

Richardson, Isabella 

Rogers, Ava 

Rogers, Eli 

Rogers, Jacob 

Rogers, Maia 

Romari, Layla 

Rose, Alice 

Rose, Thomas 

Ross, Lachlan 

Salaoutis, Stephanie 

Salaoutis, Zoe 

Sandow, Billy 

Sandow, Fredric 

Sandow, Jessica 

Scher, Alexia 

Scher, Joah 

Schultz, Gus 

Scoffern, Misty 

Silloray, William 

Singh, Daniel 

Singh Towler, Jaya 

Singh Towler, Rohan 

Skehan, Milla 

Skehan, Oscar 

Snow, Claudia 

Snow, Harriet 

Somogyi, Emma 

Somogyi, Zack 

Stevenson, Semrah 

Stewart, Connor 

Stewart, Eliza 

Strauss, Cleo 

Strauss, Nate 

Sultana, Lila 

Sverdvik, Dulcie 

Sverdvik, Fox 

Sydney, Ava 

Sydney, Olive 

Talbot, Harriet 

Talbot, Spencer 

Taylor, Bonnie 

Tierney, Asher 

Trembath, Oscar 

Trembath, Thomas 

Turnbull, Jake 

Turnbull, Lucia 

Tyrrell, Jarvis 

Tyrrell, Oliver 

Unsworth, Matilda 

Unsworth, Sebastian 

Wallace, Daniel 

Walley, Oscar 

Walley, Tia 

Walter, Abby 

Walter, Jock 

Ward, Archie 

Ward, Freddie 

Ward, Poppy 

Waters, Poppy 

Waters, Wilbur 

Watson, Zara 

Watt, Archie 

Watt, Zoe 

Westaway, Archie 

Westaway, Clancy 

Westphal, Hannah 

Westphal, Jasper 

Whitehouse, Aaron 

Wilkinson, Sophie 

Williams, Emma 

Williams, Jack 

Williams, Jemima 

Williams, Sonny 

Wilson, Grace 

Wisken, Kalani 

Wisken, Mahlia 

Wodak, Hazel 

Wodak, Zadie 

Wolfe, Isabella 

Wolfe, Oscar 

Zabojec, Alexander 

Zabojec, Lucas 

Zappone, Luca 

Associate 

Adamson, Talia 

Ahern, Daniel 

Akkerman, Brad 
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Akkerman, Georgina 

Allegos, Aris 

Anderson, Kelvin 

Anderson, Susanne 

Arnott, Wesley 

Arthur, Hannah 

Arthur, James 

Ashby, Vanessa 

Ashby, Warren 

Atkins, Charles 

Austin, Karen 

Ayer, Scott 

Bardwell, Elizabeth 

Bardwell, Rohan 

Barnes, Sandra 

Barson, Rebekah 

Bastian, Amber 

Benetti-Hille, Marika 

Bennett, Andrew 

Bertalli, Cameron 

Bertalli, Julia 

Bessell, Daniel 

Blake, Alice 

Blythe, James 

Blythe, Miffany 

Bonfield, Siobain 

Bonfield, Stephen 

Brancatisano, Mark 

Bridger, Eleanor 

Brockhurst, Tom 

Brookes, Simone 

Brown, Thomas 

Buchanan, Craig 

Button, Lisa 

Cahill, Anna 

Callaghan, Mark 

Campbell, Kate 

Campbell, Peta 

Cantwell-Cargill, Lisa 

Carne, Peter 

Carter, Louisa 

Cassell, Iris 

Cassidy, Mark 

Cester, Mark 

Cester, Roberta 

Chadwick, Kerri 

Chadwick, Timothy 

Chambers, Steve 

Chatfield, Simon 

Cheong, Jeanie 

Cherny, Tanya 

Clancy, William 

Clark, Rowan 

Clarke, Sharyn 

Clarke, Warren 

Cleven, David 

Collings, Anthony 

Collingwood, Kate 

Collingwood, Stewart 

Collins, Rhys 

Cooper, Elizabeth 

Crescia, Marco 

Crescia, Nadia 

Crisp, Joanne 

Croucher, Reagan 

Cullen, Felicity 

D'Amico, Melissa 

Davenport, Clyde 

Davenport, Deborah 

Davenport, Elisabeth 

Davenport, Lauren 

Davenport, Lucy 

Davey, Rebecca 

Dawes, Kynan 

Day, Amanda 

Day, Benjamin 

De Fazio, Tamie 

De Vere, Jonathan 

Delaney, Luke 

Denisenko, Georgia 

Devine, Alexandra 

Devine, Roger 

Doak, Simon 

Dobinson, Christine 

Doherty, Tara 

Donnelly, Paul 

Dougherty, Lucas 

Douglas, Jody 

Douglas, Naomi 

Dunlop, Robert 

Dyer, Kate 

Dymond, Samantha 

Eagle, John 

Edmonds, Amber 

Edmonds, William 

Ellery, Andrea 

Ellery, Andrew 

Elliott, Caroline 

Elliott, Elise 

Elliott, Tom 

Enever, Matthew 

Etheredge, Linette 

Fehring, Campbell 

Findlay, Anna 

Findlay, Peter 

Finkelstein, Maxine 

Fitzpatrick, Nicole 

Ford, Fiona 

Forsyth, Fleur 

French, Chris 

French, Sharon 

Garner, Katrina 

Garner, Peter 

Gasparini, Anthony 

Gay, Matt 

Gearing, Julie 

George, Alexandra 

Gluyas, Sally 

Grant, Chris 

Grant, Karen 

Gregory, Janine 

Gregory, Robert 

Griffith, Ian 

Groves, Donna 

Hafner, Brigitte 

Hamzic, Emina 

Handley, Wendy 

Hansen, Jocelyn 

Hansen, Richard 

Hansen, Soren 

Harrison, Charlie 

Harrison, Jessica 

Harrison, Melinda 

Hassett, Amanda 

Heffernan, Jodi 

Hellmann, Wolfgang 

Henderson, Andrew 

Henderson, Olivia 

Herbstritt, Jemma 

Hershan, Amy 

Hershan, Dion 

Hicks, Janet 

Hicks, Paul-Thomas 

Higgins, Andrew 

Higgins, Melanie 

Hill, Karen 

Hitchiner, Kane 

Hogg, Brendon 

Holt, Simon 

Hone, Imogen 

Hopkinson, Mark 

Hopkinson, Tatenda 

Horne, Craig 

Horne, Michelle 

Hosking, Gregory 

Houlihan, Christine 

Howell, Deborah 

Howell, Rob 

Hoyle, Michael 

Huddle, Samantha 

Huett, Lisa 

Hughes, Martin 

Hunter, Alix 

Hutton, Jonathon 

Hyams, Rob 

Hyatt, Sally 

Hynes, Craig 

Hyslop, John 

Hyslop, Karin 

Irwin, Amanda 

Irwin, Warwick 

Jaksa, Yvette 

James, Josh 

Jeanes, Alina 

Jenkins, John 

Johnstone, Chris 

Johnstone, Irene 

Juras, Annie 

Kay, Sarah 

Kemp, Nathalie 

Kendrick, Melanie 

Kenny, Joanna 

Keogh, Geoffrey 

Kitto, Cassandra 

Kleverlaan, Monty 

Kogler, Thea 

Kool, Brandon 

Kostiuk, Renee 

Kottek, Wilga 

Kunaratnam, Hamsa 

Laity, Kim 

Lally, Kate 

Lally, Simon 

Landau, Adam 

Langdon, Tim 

Langford, Craig 

Larobina, Amanda 

Larobina, Marco 

Latchford, Prudence 

Laughton, Carolyn 

Laughton, Simon 

Lebeau, Arthur 

Leckel, Jana 

Leeton, Susan 

Lempriere, Kristine 

Leonard, Tina 

Levy, Anouche 

Levy, Michael 

Lew, Evelyn 

Lightfoot, Jessica 

Lillywhite, David 

Lillywhite, Karen 

Locke, Andrei 

Longwill, Dee 

Lowden, Kevin 

MacGowan, Stewart 

Magree, Margot 

Mair, Catherine 

Marks, Sally 

Martyn, Penelope 

Martyn, Simon 

Mason, Sarah-Jo 

Mather, Laura 

May-Konning, Zoe 

McAllister, Craig 

McCraith, Stuart 

Mcdonald, Jason 

McKeachie, Jennifer 

McKellar, Dianna 

McKellar, Jonathon 

Mckenzie, Susan 

Mckinnon, Anna 

McKinnon, Matthew 

McManamey, Alexandra 

McMillan, Brendan 

McPherson, Cameron 

McPherson, Melissa 

Melbourne, Jennifer 

Meredith-Smith, Emily 

Meredith-Smith, Jonathon 

Merrigan, Sarah 

Merrison, Edward 

Meszaros, William 

Meysztowicz, Ed 

Mezger, Anna 

Middendorp, Anton 

Middendorp, Robyn 

Miglic Dean, Katherine 
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Milosavljevic, Branko 

Mollenkopf, Brooke 

Mollenkopf, Lucinda 

Morell, Antony 

Morgan, Vanessa 

Munro, Chris 

Murdoch, Fiona 

Myers, Stacey 

Naarden, Sarah 

Neal, David 

Newnham, Sarah 

Nicholls, Sarah 

Norris, Sallie 

Northcote, Hayley 

Nott, Vicki 

Noxon, Justin 

Oaten, Marni 

O'Connor, Chris 

Oddie, Sue 

Ogilvie, Brooke 

Ogilvie, Nicholas 

Oldham, Melaina 

O'Neil, Sophie 

O'Shaughnessy, Julia 

Pagliaro, Belinda 

Parris, Vincent 

Patti, Brendan 

Patti, Julie 

Paul, Courtney 

Paynter, David 

Perry, Ben 

Perry, Felicity 

Phillips, Amber 

Pitt, Simon 

Poore, Richard 

Pound, Jane 

Price, Cameron 

Price, Pir 

Ralton, Sam 

Randles, William 

Redlich, Erin 

Redlich, Robert 

Reid, Matt 

Reith, Simon 

Renato, Julie 

Renato, Sebastian 

Renison, Krysha 

Richards, Regan 

Richardson, Rachel 

Riseley, Brendan 

Rogers, Ben 

Rogers, Megan 

Ross, Fraser 

Rouse, Hannah 

Russell, Sharon 

Rydberg, Christine 

Salaoutis, Con 

Sandow, Pippa 

Scher, Kim 

Schultz, Rebecca 

Scoffern, Felicity 

Sexton, Kathleen 

Seymour, Catherine 

Silloray, Josephine 

Silver, David 

Silver, Diane 

Simmons, Medine 

Singh, Kasha 

Slater, Bronwen 

Smith, Matthew 

Snow, Gillian 

Snow, Jeremy 

Somogyi, Sarah 

Stagoll, Eve 

Stern, Kate 

Stevenson, Ferda 

Stevenson, Lee 

Stewart, Carolyn 

Stewart, Grant 

Strauss, Kellie 

Sverdvik, Monique 

Sydney, Adam 

Tabain, Isabelle 

Tabain, Nik 

Talbot, Daryl 

Talbot, Simon 

Tan, Meileen 

Taylor, Judith 

Taylor, Louise 

Thomas, Amanda 

Thomas, Michelle 

Tierney, Christie 

Tierney, Jane 

Treadwell, Anne 

Trembath, Ed 

Trembath, Olivia 

Turnbull, Annelies 

Unsworth, Lisa 

Urban, Alice 

Vincent, Courtney 

Walley, Michelle 

Walmsley, Helen 

Walter, Andrew 

Walter, Lucy 

Ward-Ambler, Ian 

Ward-Ambler, Penelope 

Warner, Fiona 

Waters, Donna 

Watt, Renee 

Westphal, Kris 

Westphal, Sophia 

Wheatley, Megan 

Whiteoak, Brett 

Williams, Heidi 

Williams, Janet 

Williams, Neil 

Williams, Nina 

Williams, Ruth 

Williams, Sandra 

Wilson, James 

Wilson, Naomi 

Wise, Rachael 

Wisken, James 

Wisken, Natalie 

Wolfe, Bryce 

Wolfe, Leanne 

Woods, Elisa 

Woods, Lou 

Woodward, Corinne 

Wotton, Amy 

Yates, Caitlin 

Zabojec, Robert 

Zappone, Michael 

General 

Bickell, William 

Chadwick, Jaime 

Chadwick, Kobi 

Farrell, Chloe 

Farrell, Nate 

Farrell, Summer 

Farrell, Taj 

French, Erin 

Gallagher, Archie 

Hosking, Hugh 

Kool, Taj 

Lempriere, Max 

Meszaros, Alison 

Meszaros, Madeline 

Paul, Harry 

Rechner Thomas, Gustav 

Reith, Annabel 

Reith, Finn 

Reith, Henry 

Simmons, Rupert 

Tierney, Eva 

Tierney, Isla 

Wheatley-Young, Ilka 

Wheatley-Young, Owen 

Wolfe, Montgomery 

Woods, Marley 
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Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 

For the year ended 30 April 2021

Note 2021 2020
$ $

Revenue
Income              137,513 369,180          
Donations 62,935               70,099            
Income from Government including Grants 74,159               20,320            
Interest income 11,589               16,741            
Other income - 35,947 

Total revenue              286,196 512,287          

Expenses
Depreciation expense 55,881               57,782            
Grants and Donations 7,200 4,800              
Other Expenses 137,323             257,343          

Total expenditure 200,404             319,925          

Surplus before income tax 85,792               192,362          

Income tax expense - - 

Surplus for the year attributable to the members of 
Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. 85,792               192,362          

Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax. - - 

Total comprehensive Income for the financial year 
attributable to the members of Point Leo Surf Life 
Saving Club Inc.

85,792               192,362          

Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income



Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 
Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 April 2021

Note 2021 2020
$ $

Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,073,260 862,586
Trade and other receivables 1,523 2,364
Inventories 50,022 56,863
Other assets 7,630 -                

Total current assets 1,132,435 921,813

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1,005,660 998,588
Work in Progress 39,622 11,580
Right of Use Asset 400                 400
Total non-current assets 1,045,682 1,010,568

Total assets 2,178,117 1,932,381

Liabilities

Current liabilities
Other liabilities (1,866)             (730)              
Total current liabilities (1,866)             (730)              

Non current liabilities
Deferred income 150,000          -                
Lease liabilities 400                 400               
Total non-current liabilities 150,400          400               

Total liabilities 148,534          (330)              

Net assets 2,029,583 1,932,711

Members’ Funds
Members funds 563,778 563,778
Retained earnings 1,460,077 1,374,285
Unrealised gains 5,728 (5,352)

Total members’ funds 2,029,583 1,932,711



Note 2021 2020
$ $

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from donors, members and other income 231,624       429,686       
Payments to suppliers and employees (50,119)        (264,291)      
Interest received 11,589         16,741         
Grants received 81,575         63,320         
Net cash provided by operating activities 5 274,669       245,456       

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment - 10,772 
Payments for property, plant and equipment (63,994)        (108,912) 
Net cash used in investing activities (63,994)        (98,140)        

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 210,674 147,316

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial 
year 862,586       715,270       

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial 
year 1,073,260    862,586       

Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 April 2021



Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 
Statement of Members’ Funds 
For the year ended 30 April 2021

30 April 2021 Members Retained Unrealised Total
 funds Earnings gains

$ $ $ $

Balance at 1 May 2020 563,778 1,374,285 (5,352) 1,932,711
Profit for the year - 85,792 - 85,792
Unrealised gains / (losses) - - 11,080 11,080

Balance at 30 April 2021 563,778 1,460,077 5,728 2,029,583

30 April 2020 Members Retained Unrealised Total
 funds Earnings gains

$ $ $ $

Balance at 1 May 2019 563,778 1,181,923         1,844.00 1,747,545
Profit for the year - 192,362 - 192,362
Unrealised gains -  - (7,196) (7,196)

Balance at 30 April 2020 563,778 1,374,285 (5,352) 1,932,711



Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 April 2021

Note 1.  Statement of significant accounting policies

New and amended standards adopted by the Association

Any new or amended Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not been early adopted.

Basis of preparation

All amounts are presented in Australian dollars, unless otherwise stated.

The Association has adopted all of the new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for the current reporting period.

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs and does not take into account
changing money value or, except where specifically stated, current valuations of non-current assets.

In the application of the Association’s accounting policies, the members of the committee are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. is an entirely voluntary organisation which provides beach patrol and rescue services, first aid 
and lifesaving training at Point Leo Surf Beach and surrounds. 

The financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2021 were approved and authorised for issue by the Members of the
Committee of Management.  

These special purpose financial statements comply with all the recognition and measurement requirements in Australian 
Accounting Standards

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These policies have 
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

Basis of preparation
Point Leo Suft Lifesaving Club Inc. is a not-for-profit entity. In the opinion of the Committee, Point Leo Suft Lifesaving Club Inc Inc 
is not a reporting entity as its users may request the financial information they need. These special purpose financial statements 
have been prepared for distribution to members and for the purposes of fulfilling the reporting requirements under the Australian 
Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.



Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 30 April 2021

(a) Property, Plant and equipment

(b) Inventories

(c) Cash and cash equivalents

(d) Income tax

(e) Accounts Receivable and Other Receivables

(f) Right of Use Asset

(g) Revenue and other income

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).

(h) Goods and services Tax (GST)

(i) Accounts Payable and Other Payables

Cash flows are presented in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis, except for the GST component of investing and
financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows.

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation and presentation of the financial report. The
accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.

Property (buildings), plant and equipment are carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation. The
depreciable amount of all property, plant and equipment is depreciated over the useful life of the asset to the Association
commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.

Inventories are stated in the Statement of Financial Position at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments.

No provision for income tax has been made as the Association is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax
Assessment Act 1997.

Accounts receivable are expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified as current
assets. All other receivables are classified as non-current assets. 

A right-of-use asset is recognised in relation to the concessionary lease of the land upon which the Association's Club House 
operates.  The right-of-use asset is measured at cost and depreciated on a straight-line basis over the remaining unexpired period 
of the lease or the useful life of the asset, whichever is shorter.

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not
recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST
receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or
payables in the statement of financial position.

Funding for Club activities comes from membership fees, donations and gifts/sponsorships from corporate benefactors. Revenue
is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable after taking into account any available concessions.

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method using an appropriate interest rate. 

Accounts payable and other payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period for goods and services
received by the Association during the reporting period that remain unpaid. The balance is recognised as a current liability with the
amounts normally paid within 30 days of recognition of the liability.



Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 30 April 2021

(j)   Provisions

(k) Impairment of assets

(l) Current and non-current classification

An asset is classified as current when: 

·      it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
·      it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period; or 

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when: 
·      it is either expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; 
·      it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
·      it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

(m) Comparative information

(n) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

NOTE 2 - AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION 

During the financial year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of 
the Association: 2021 2020

$ $
Audit services - Kidmans Partners Audit Pty Ltd 
Audit of the financial statements 3,000 3,000

Assets and liabilities are presented in the Statement of Financial Position based on current and non-current classification.

·      it is either expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle; 

·     the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. 

·      there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. 

When required by Accounting Standards, comparatives have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the current
year.

The preparation of the financial statements requires the committee of management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other various factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements.  Actual results may differ from these estimates.  

The Committee of management continually evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation to assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Provisions are measured using the best estimate of amounts required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period.

At each reporting date, the Association reviews the carrying values of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher
of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the asset's carrying value. Any excess of the asset's
carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

Provisions are recognised when the Association has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured.



Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 30 April 2021

NOTE 3 - EVENTS OCCURING AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The spread of COVID-19 and related government restrictions will impact the operations of the 
Association in the financial year ended 30 April 2021.  In the current environments it is difficult to predict 
with certainty the impact COVID-19 will have on the operating results; however, the Committee of 
Management have determined that there is no impact on the financial statement for the year ended 30 
April 2021 and there is no material uncertainty that the Association will be able to continue as a going 
concern for the next 12 months and will continue to meet debts as and when they fall due.

No other matters or circumstances have occurred subsequent to year end that has significantly affect the 
operations of the Association.

NOTE 4 - REGISTERED OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Association's registered office and principal place of business are Unit 44 113 Country Club Drive 
Safety Beach VIC 3936 and Foreshore Western Parade, Point Leo VIC 3916 respectively.

NOTE 5 - CASH FLOW RECONCILIATION
2021 2020

Reconciliation of cash flow from operating activities with net current year surplus
$ $

Current year surplus/(deficit) after income tax 85,792 192,362

Non-cash flows in current year surplus:
Depreciation expense 55,881 57,782
Gain on sale of assets 0 (2,803)
Asset write-offs 1,041 11,373
Movement in unrealised gain reserve 11,080 (7,196)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable and other debtors 841 263
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 6,841 209
(Increase)/decrease in other assets (7,630) 6,005
(Increase)/decrease in work in progress (28,042) (11,580)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable and other liabilities (1,135) (961)

124,669 245,455



i.

ii.

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Committee of Managementand is signed for and on
behalf of the Committee by:

________________________________ 
Name Julia O'Shaughnessy
Chairperson

_______________________________
Name Kim Williams
Committee member

Dated: 7 July 2021

Present a true and fair view of the financial position of Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. as at 30 April 2021 
and its performance for the year ended on that date in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and 
th Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulations 2012; and

At the date of the statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. 
will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc.
Statement by Members of the Committee of Management

The Committee of Management has determined that the association is not a reporting entity and that this special 
purpose financial report should be prepared in accordance with the accounting policies outlined in Note 1 to the 
Financial Statements.

In the opinion of the Committee of Management, the financial statements, comprising the Statement of Profit or Loss 
and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of 
Cash Flows and Notes to the Financial Statements are in accordance with the Australian Charities and Not-for-
profits Commission Act 2012 and:



Auditor’s Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 
to the Committee of Governance of Mordialloc Community Centre Inc.  

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 April 
2021 there have been: 

(i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the
Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the
audit.

KIDMANS PARTNERS AUDIT PTY LTD 

John Petridis 
Director 

Melbourne, 9 July 2021 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE COMMITTEE MEMBERS OF POINT LEO SURF LIFE 
SAVING CLUB INC.  

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. (the Association), which 
comprises the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 April 2021, the Statement of Profit or Loss and other 
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Members Funds, Statement of Cash Flows and the notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and Statement by the Members 
of the Committee of Management.  

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Association as at 30 April 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (AASB’s) to the extent described in 
Note 1, the Associations Incorporation Reform Act 2012 and the financial reporting requirements of the 
Australian Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012. 

Emphasis of Matter  
Without qualification to the opinion expressed above, attention is drawn to the following matter: 

1. As is common for Associations of this type, it is not practical for the Association to maintain an effective
system of internal control over cash transactions, until their entry into the accounting records.
Accordingly, our audit in relation to these activities was limited to the amount recorded.

Basis of Accounting 
Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report, which describes the basis 
of accounting.  The financial report has been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the Members of the 
Committee of Managements’ financial reporting responsibilities under the Associations Incorporation 
Reform Act 2012 and the Australian Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012.  As a result, the 
financial report may not be suitable for another purpose.   

Basis for opinion  
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.  Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report.  

We are independent of the Association in accordance with the independence requirements of Australian 
professional accounting bodies, of the Associations Incorporation Reform Act 2012 and the Australian 
Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012.  We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

Other Information 
Management is responsible for the other information.  Our opinion on the financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE COMMITTEE MEMBERS OF POINT LEO SURF LIFE 
SAVING CLUB INC. (CONTINUED) 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and in doing so consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact.  We have nothing to report in this regard.  

Going concern 
Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting appears to be appropriate and based on the 
audit evidence obtained, there is no material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Association’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Association or cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  Those charged with governance are responsible for 
overseeing the Association’s financial reporting process.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud and error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.   

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement 
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.  We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Association’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE COMMITTEE MEMBERS OF POINT LEO SURF LIFE 
SAVING CLUB INC. (CONTINUED) 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Association to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Kidmans Partners Audit Pty Ltd 
ABN: 46 143 986 841 

John Petridis 
Director  

9 July 2021 



COMPILATION REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF POINT LEO SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB INC 

We have compiled the accompanying additional information of Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc for the 
year ended 30 April 2021.  The additional information has been prepared to satisfy the information needs of 
the member of Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc in accordance with the accounting policies adopted in the 
preparation of the annual financial statements of Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc for the year ended 30 
April 2021, as described in Note 1 to the financial statements.   

The Responsibility of the Committee  
The members of Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc are solely responsible for the form and content of the 
additional information, the reliability, accuracy and completeness of the information used to compile it and for 
the determination that the basis of accounting used for its preparation is appropriate to meet their needs and 
appropriate for the purpose that the additional information was prepared.  

Our Responsibility  
On the basis of information provided to us by management we have compiled the accompanying additional 
information in accordance with the basis of accounting described above and APES 315 Compilation of 
Financial Information.  

We have applied our professional expertise in accounting and financial reporting to compile the additional 
information in accordance with the basis of accounting described above. We have complied with the relevant 
ethical requirements of APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants.  

Disclaimer  
Since our engagement is not an assurance engagement, we are not required to verify the reliability, accuracy 
or completeness of the information provided to us by management to compile the additional information or 
the appropriateness of the basis of accounting used for its preparation. Accordingly, we do not express an 
audit opinion or a review conclusion on the additional information.  

The additional information was compiled exclusively for the benefit of the management and the members of 
Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. The additional information may not be suitable for other purposes.  We 
do not accept responsibility for the contents of the additional information.    

Kidmans Partners Audit Pty Ltd 

John Petridis 
Director 

9 July 2021 



2021 2020
$ $

Income
Gifts
Sponsorships 455              2,884         
Gifts & donations 62,935         70,099       
Accommodation income - -            
Grants 74,159         63,320       
Subsidies - 2,530         

Facilities
Equipment 5,074           7,435         
Club Rooms 591 2,182         

Fund Raising
Pt Leo Swim Classic 8,973           26,827       
Functions 491 7,387         
Sundry - 18,229       

Memberships
Competition 9,067           24,307       
Members 78,339         100,123     
Training camps 9,936           21,744       
50/50 scheme - - 
Other income 3,601           13,713       
Bar 3,094           14,129       
Interest 11,589         16,741       
Uniforms; clothing 17,497         67,890       
Equipment Levy - Nippers 395 16,801       
Other 33,144       
Profit (Loss) on Disposal of Assets - 2,803         
Total income 286,196       512,287     

Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 
Detailed profit and loss statement
For the year ended 30 April 2021



2021 2020
$ $

Expenses
Accommodation - 332            
Accountant/Audit 3,000           3,000         
Administration 645              7,488         
Awards 302              2,692         
Bank Charges 2,117           3,246         
Bar Purchases 2,606           5,520         
Cleaning 5,529           8,408         
Club Repairs & Maintenance 12,910         10,745       
Club Supplies & furnishings 292 396            
Competition 12,876         23,859       
Covid 9,315           
Depreciation 55,881         57,782       
Equipment Hire & Replacement 1,136           1,822         
50/50 Equipment payments 800 1,500         
Asset Written-Off 1,041           11,373       
First Aid 299 272            
Functions 2,725           20,102       
GTF Grant 7,200           4,800         
Information & Technology 2,271           2,761         
Insurance 20,663         26,366       
Patrol 5,013           647            
Postage & Delivery 745 1,293         
Printing & Reproduction 441 1,342         
Registration & Licences 2,436           5,105         
Sundry 11,713         20,268       
Swim Classic 4,719           16,494       
Training & Development 13,916         22,924       
Uniforms 15,651         51,268       
Utilities 4,161           8,120         
Total expenses 200,404       319,925     

Surplus 85,792         192,362     

Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 April 2021

Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 
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